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AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIE

DIRECTOR’'S REPORT

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to presenGthadiator Resources Annual Report and the refadthe year
ended 30 June 2013.

Gladiator's activities during the reporting peripdincipally related to the Zapucay Project, Uruguayjoint
venture with Orosur Mining Inc. (OMI) and the licdng arrangements with the Brazilian carbonisatial
pyrolysis technology for charcoal production.

The Zapucay Project is not a conventional ironpeg, rather the concept is to produce merchantrpig(MPI).
This will be achieved by mining and concentratinggmetite ore in the Isla Cristalina Belt and to tseproduct
in mini blast furnaces to produce MPI. Thimids the issue of a large scale productiorh witnsequent
extreme capital costs that is required for coneerti magnetite export projects. It also focusesRloject on
the iron metallics market and not the global sead@on ore market.

The combination of high grade concentrate, chartaminology and availability of timber will genegdbw cost
pig iron production. Given the global demand fingin iron, the financial feasibility of the Projewas as
expected. Due to changes on the board of direetodsthe uncertainties of the market Gladiator hasupder
review and consideration all the information on #mject. Over the next year the scope of a DFSldvbe
defined as well as future work regarding mineradlesation.

By March 2011, Gladiator had spent in excess of Li&#lion on the project and consequently earneth 20 the
joint venture. Further expenditure of $4m triggkf@ladiator earning 51% of the joint venture in Asg2011.
When Gladiator produces a bankable feasibility phefore 31 December 2015, it will earn a furth@#2taking
its interest in the joint venture to 80%.

Highlights during the year were:

* Pre-Feasibility Study completed and indicates teehrand financial viability of developing the Zagay
Project in Uruguay to produce Merchant Pig Iron &od Ore Pellets for export;

* SRK Consulting (UK) Limited (SRK) completed an utmlaf the Mineral Resource Estimate at the Zapucay

Project. The JORC compliant Indicated and Infefvideral Resources of 69.4 million tonnes at an ager
grade of 26.5% Fe is based on 26,147m of drilling;

* The PFS has demonstrated the robust economicsdPribiect based on the annual production of 420,000

tonnes of MPI and 570,000 tonnes of iron ore pel®ter a period of at least 19 years. Financialyaisa
indicates a favourable internal rate of return @¥@before tax;

* Review of the pre-feasibility study was undertakeéth the aim of identifying areas where significamst
savings could be made and areas where additiof@imation is required in order to assist in defghia
feasibility study;

* Accepted an offer from Octagonal Resources (WA) By, a wholly owned subsidiary of Octagonal
Resources Limited purchased Gladiator's 30% inténets Hogan’'s Project tenements - exploratiaetises.
Gladiator received 1,500,000 fully paid shares ata@onal Resources Limited,;

» Exploration focused on areas of potential ultraméithologies and potential IOCG targets has iduuti
several targets for further work.

Overall, a fruitful year where significant progresas made in advancing the Zapucay Project to é¢xé stage of
development.

| wish to acknowledge my fellow Directors for theupport as we move forward with the Zapucay.

Dated this 38'I day of September, 2013

OSCAR LEON 7“\3 '

Director

\
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
OVERVIEW

Gladiator’s principal focus is the Zapucay Pig I®roject, located in northern Uruguay, where thenfany has
identified an opportunity to develop a low cost pan project producing Merchant Pig Iron (“MPI"Qrfsale into
the world market. MPI is cold iron, cast into ing@nd sold as ferrous feedstock for the steel agtdlmasting
industries. It falls into the category of ferroustailics of which iron and steel scrap compriseddnythe largest
volume, others include direct reduced iron (“DR#d hot briquetted iron (“HBI”). Ferrous metalliese the
ferrous feedstocks for steelmaking using Electnic Purnaces (“EAF”) and for ferrous metal castiStpel scrap
is generally the preferred ferrous raw material tfegse industries, however a major drawback withpsés its
relatively high level of contaminants. MPI is thieme a necessary part of the feedstock, partigulaien high
quality steels are being produced, due its verylxels of contaminants, which lowers the contamiravels in
final steel products.

Over 60% of steel production in the USA is basedEdirs, and studies show that, in the period to 2EXFs
will contribute an increasingly greater proportiohglobal steel production due to their energyaidficy. This
may even result in demand for ferrous metallicsmyng at a faster rate than global steel productiiter this
time, increasing levels of steel scrap generatio@hina can be expected to lead to the developofeatlarge
EAF based steel industry in that country, simitathat which exists in more mature economies sgckuaope
and the USA. While this may lead to more subdueth&d®e demand for iron ore, it will further stimdat
international demand for ferrous metallics suciM&x.

The Company believes that the Zapucay Project mdlise attractive cash margins due to its inténatly
competitive cost position. This is due to a unigeé of circumstances. As well as possessing its swpply of
quality iron ore, the Project is able to accesshiwiclose proximity, large quantities of low cqdantation grown
timbers to be used for charcoal productibhe Project is located in an establishedinmgindistrict with
experienced workforces and strong community suppod can readily access existing infrastructureh sag
roads, railways, ports and the Uruguayan natiotedtrécity grid. Unlike much lower value iron orehich is
typically shipped in very large bulk carriers thedquire expensive port development and other costly
infrastructure, high-value MPI is moved in much Heravessels which are well suited to use the atsal ports
in Uruguay and southern Brazil. The value addingeats of the project are attractive to the Govemninud
Uruguay and the wider community and because the&rns value-adding in Uruguay, it should be ablaccess
the tax incentive schemes introduced by the Urugn&overnment to encourage capital investment.

During the year, Gladiator's main activities weoedsed on completing the various studies for thedirpinary
feasibility study on the development of the ZapuRagject Pig Iron Project. At the beginning of flr@ncial year
feasibility study was completed and indicates tézdirand financial viability of developing the Zagay Project in
Uruguay to produce Merchant Pig Iron and Iron Celes for export.

The announced JORC compliant Indicated and InfelMetkral Resources of 69.4 million tonnes at anrage
grade of 26.5% Fe can support the projected arproduction of 420,000 tonnes of MPI and 570,00ésnof
iron ore pellets over a period of at least 19 ye@he high quality of the MPI and pellets shouldwe ready
acceptance in the world market.

There is a low level of geological confidence agsed with Inferred Mineral Resources and themeoisertainty
that further exploration work will result in thetdemination of indicated mineral resources or thatproduction
target itself will be realised.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
The PFS delineates a flexible scale of developnweitit, the potential to be scaled up or down withlmsing its

competitive cost position. Financial analysis irtgs a favourable internal rate of return of 20%6tectax.

Assay results show thick intersections of magnetiiaeralisation in the Zapucay resources and inapdit
Davis Tube Recovery test work shows high recovdngxaellent quality magnetite with very low leveds$
deleterious material. The resource estimate shbat 32.6% of the mineral resource could be recavéne
magnetic separation as a magnetite concentrata@inog around 63% iron with very low phosphorus teoih
of 0.01%.

The project concept envisages that the iron oreheilmined and processed to a magnetite concenwaieh

will then be pelletised to make it suitable as asbfurnace feed. Charcoal, produced using timtmen fhearby
plantations will be used as the reductant in a rhlast furnace. The pig iron will then be exportesing the
established rail and port infrastructure. The psscatilises technologies currently in widespreagl aound the
world.

A concentrator flow sheet was designed based onethdts of a comprehensive programme of metattaigest
work. The test work showed that high quality mageetoncentrate could be produced from the Zapucay
mineralisation, which in turn can be pelletisedptoduce high quality iron ore pellets as feed famniai blast
furnace.

DPC Thermal Processing successfully completedviesk to determine the yield and quality of charctram
samples of timber available to the Project. DP@asking closely with Gladiator on the design andtomy of the
charcoal production facility for the Project. Therfipany’s timber consultants completed work on dagrboth
short-term and long-term supplies of timber suddbl the production of high quality charcoal.

The Company lodged its Project Communication Documsgth the Uruguayan Department for the Environtnen
during March 2012. This document summarises thepqeed development at Zapucay and also presents the
baseline environmental data for the project aremigement of the document represents the first stdgbe
environmental approvals process. At the end ofe®aipér 2012 the Uruguayan Department for the Enmrieort
advised Gladiator that they accepted the Projelain&sion and invited the Company to proceed with fihal
Project submission.

Octagonal Resources (WA) Limited continued an acéixploration programme over the Hogan’s Joint Went
tenements, which concluded in an offer to purct@kseliator's 30% interest in its Hogan’'s Projebénements -
exploration licences E26/108, E15/774, E15/ 803 BhS/1044 located approximately 25km east of Kaodat
Western Australia were included in the agreementvbith Gladiator received 1,500,000 fully paid r&sain
Octagonal Resources Limited.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

ZAPUCAY PIG IRON PROJECT

Project Summary, Concept and Status

Gladiator's principal activities during the year nwethe completion of various studies required taski the
preliminary feasibility study on the developmentioé Zapucay Project Pig Iron Project in northernduiay. As at
the begining of the financial year, these studiesawiinished and the PFS results were released Bren on the
different studies were revised to define scopddasibility study and improve project economics.
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Figure 1: Location of Isla Cristalina Belt and ifstructure in Uruguay and Southern Brazil
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

The project is located approximately 450kms noftMontevideo, the capital of Uruguay and some 50kmom
the border with Brazil (Figure 1). The project ihgect to a Joint Venture Agreement with Orosur ikgninc
(“OMI") whereby the Company can earn up to an 8@fériest in the iron ore, manganese ore and basdsniret
OMI’s project area within the Isla Cristalina Béit Uruguay (Figure 1). The agreement was signe#ugust
2010 and provides for the Company to earn up tdB@¥ interest in the project tenements by produ@ng
bankable feasibility study on or before 31 Decenfi#5. In August 2011, the Company reached a roitesby
completing expenditure in excess of $5 million ba Zapucay project thereby earning a 51% interesie joint
venture project. The Company has electecekdm an additional 29% interest by completihg bankable
feasibility study.
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Figure 2: Location of Joint Venture Tenements aod & Base Metal Projects

The joint venture tenements cover an area of ajipeiely 750kméand in addition, Gladiator has applications
for two prospecting permits covering a further 1%8k in its own name. The Isla Cristalina Belt is a
Palaeoproterozic orogenic belt located in NortHdraguay, with approximate dimensions of 100kms Bkr3s
and hosts several discrete iron formation occuagnseveral of which are located within the Zapueagject
area. Additional areas include Areicua and Curtiand subject to drill evaluation they have the ptério
become standalone projects or allow expansioniseoZapucay Project (Figure 2).
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

As part of Gladiator's obligations under the agreatnduring 2010 the Company completed a conceptudly
on the project and concluded that the Zapucay Erdjas the potential for the development of a famty
attractive project based on the production of paniusing the iron ore resources located within phaject
tenements.

The concept envisages that the iron ore will beeshiand processed to an iron concentrate, whichtiéh be
pelletised to make it suitable as a blast furnasel f Charcoal, produced using timber from nearbytptions,
will be used as the reductant in a mini blast faena 'he pig iron will then be exported using thialekshed rail
and port infrastructure. The process utilises tetdgies currently in widespread use around thedvorl

Based on the above concept a PFS study was delihaatl undertaken during 2011 through Septembe2. 201
Several qualified consultants were appointed tsasa the several aspects covered on the studyulRdrom the
PFS indicate technical and financial viability the Zapucay Project.

Work Undertaken During the Year
Completion of the PFS study based on the developowrtept proposed with results that indicate &ohnical

and financial viability of the project. Based od@RC compliant Indicated and Inferred Mineral Resewf 69.4
million tonnes at an average grade 26.5% Fe prdar&RK Consulting (UK) Limited, the company delited a
possible annual production of 420,000 tonnes of sid 570,000 tonnes of pellets over a period déadt 19
years. Metallurgical testwork has shown that a $aphur Merchant Pig Iron can be produced andedsas the
surplus pellets that can both be accepted in thlwaarket.

The Company has commissioned a marketing stodyetermine the future demand for merchant mig and
to compare the expected quality of pig iron from Hapucay Project with that traded on the worldkaiannitial
conclusions are that the material produced fronzéqaicay Project should be well accepted in theketaand
have a competitive advantage over many of theiegigtroducers.

The project has proven to be flexible with the pttd to be scaled up or down without losing itsnpetitive

position due to external constraints. Logistics lzaieed on existing infrastructure and discussios® weld with
the Uruguayan port and rail authorities regardimagrtproposed new port, which has the potentia¢tiuce project
transportation costs.

Work continued revising various studies of thdipr@aary feasibility study including mine planningngineering
design and estimates for capital and operatingsdostthe mine, concentrator, pellet plant, charpbent, mini
blast furnace and mine infrastructure to imprpwoject economics.

The Project Communication Document (PCD) a comprsilre environmental document that includes bage lin
studies was lodged with the Uruguayan Departmenthef Environment during the year, which initiatdg t
environmental approvals process for the projece PED was accepted by the government agency whmhisa
the company to proceed with the final Project s@@sion once defined.

The company appointed South American Managemeni{S¥MSA) to update the mineral resources for the
Project and design a drilling program to upgradefidence level in Zapucay mineral resources asiredfor
feasibility study. SAMSA proposed a program of 2@els (~600m) which is currently under review.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Preliminary Feasibility Study

During the year, the Company finished with the wreguired to complete a preliminary feasibilitydsguon the
Zapucay project. The Company has appointed thecssrof the following appropriately qualified orgsations
to assist with certain aspects of the study indgdesource estimation, design, operation andrapsfi the main
components of the mine, concentrator, charcoalymtizh plant, pellet plant, mini blast furnace gaver plant,
product marketing and financial evaluation:

» Resource Evaluation: SRK Consulting (UK) Ltd

¢ Mine Planning: Coffey International (Brazil)

e Concentrator: Engineering & Project ManagementiSeswPty Ltd (EPMS)
* Pellet Plant: EPMS

e Mini Blast Furnace: MiniTecMinitecnologiasBrazil (MiniTec)

* Charcoal Production: MiniTec and DPC. Brazil

* Power Plant: MiniTec

« Marketing: Ferrum Consultants Ltd

* Financial Evaluation: Grant Thornton (Uruguay)

The development concept for the Project involves:

* The production of magnetite ore by conventionaropit mining methods;

¢ Processing of this ore to produce magnetite cdreten Two types of concentrate will be produced,
one with a manganese content of about 1 to 1.2rfb,tlhe second with a manganese content of
between 4 to 5%. Both concentrates will have vewyphosphorous and sulphur contents;

e The production of iron ore pellets from the magaetoncentrates using charcoal fines as the frel f
the induration process;

¢ The production of low phosphorous, low sulphur dfemt Pig Iron (“MP1”) using these pellets and
surplus pellets or export;

< Production of charcoal from plantation grown timtheThe charcoal will be used as the reductant in
the mini blast furnaces, and as the fuel in thiepplant; and

* Road and rail transport of the MPI and pellet piaid to the Port of Rio Grande in southern Brazil
for export.

The development is based on the mining of the RamagBuena Orden and Iman magnetite deposits in the
Zapucay region of the Isla Cristalina belt. In diddi, the project has available to it the Areicuanideposits
approximately 8kms to the north and the Curtume deposits some 25kms to the east. Both are pdnegbint
venture. Other areas of iron ore outcrop have ldemtified within the joint venture tenements aniddator's
100% owned tenements, as shown in Figure 3.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

The work for the preliminary feasibility study hasw been completed, however optimum productioni¢eve
have not yet been determined and consequentlyatagitd operating costs among other studies need to
revised in order to define the scope for feasipdiudy. The revision of these studies is underaray aims to
improve project economics. The main aspects oPth® study are summarised in the following sections.

Resource Estimate

SRK Consulting (UK) Limited (SRK) completed the Mial Resource Estimate at the Zapucay Project. The
JORC compliant Indicated and Inferred Mineral Resewf 69.4 million tonnes at an average grade6d®%

Fe is based on 26,147m of drilling completed dutimg period August 2010 to December 2011. The drill
programme included 55 holes (3,634m) at Iman aridHles (22,513m) at the Buena Orden and Papagayo
ridges (Table 1). Figure 4 shows the distributidnmagnetite mineralisation, and the area of ddlliand
geological modelling superimposed on an aeromagimetge.

The Buena Orden and Papagayo ridges have a mingourhined strike length of approximately 12 kms and
dip steeply to the southwest, whilst Iman strikestevest for 2 kms and dips steeply to the soutie T
mineralization in all deposits is open down dip.

The drill holes were logged and sampled at onearistervals and laboratory staff at the nearby Qrosine
site carried out sample preparation. Nagrom Laboydh Perth completed X-ray fluorescence (‘XRFsay
and Davis Tube Recovery (‘DTR’) determinations drlall samples.

Table 1
Zapucay Project
Drill holes completed August 2010 to December 2011

RC RC DD DD
Deposit Holes (m) Holes (m)
Cerro Iman 37 2,935 18 699
Cerro Papagayo 60 5,633 21 1,613
Papagayo North 13 824 0 0
Cerro Bonito 37 4177 17 1,904
Bonito South 30 2,780 5 395
Canada
Bonito/South 18 1,485 7 520
Buena Orden 5 348 2 104
Buena Orden South 18 1,774 10 959
Sterilisation holes 18 1,114 0 0
Total 236 21,070 80 6,194
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Based on the drill results, SRK plotted a seriesrofs sections at an approximate spacing of 1@0cnetate
geological models for Papagayo-Buena Orden and Ifir@ure 5). SRK defined a block model for each of
these mineralized areas, with a block size of 5060m x 10m and the resource and grade were estimate
using Ordinary Kriging for all variables. No gradapping was applied during the grade estimatiocqs®
Average rock densities of 3.28t/m3 and 3.24t/m3ewderived for Iman and Papagayo-Buena Orden
respectively based on 2,256 drill core density mesaments.

_r\
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Figure 4: Zapucay Project - Location of Mineral Qugits, Drilling & Magnetic Image
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

GLADIATOR RESOURCES LIMITED
ZAPUCAY MAGNETITE PROJECT
Ceamo Prospect
Geological Cross Section Through Cerro Pa
oA Facing North il

1 i

Figure 5: Geological Cross Section — Cerro Papagayo
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

The SRK JORC compliant Mineral Resource statengestimmarised in Table 2. A lower cut-off of 15%wr&Es
applied, however the mineralised boundaries arg sbarp. In addition, the Mineral Resource Statdnign
reported inside an optimised pit shell, based ditipated mining costs and recoveries generateclagliator.
The optimised pit shell contains a total Indicaseul Inferred Mineral Resource of 69.4 million tosmggading
26.5% Fe of which 5.4 million tonnes grading 25.8% at Cerro Papagayo are classified as Indicatexbrsli
Resources, with the remainder being classifieshzsried Mineral Resources.

Table 2
Mineral Resource statement
(using a 15% Fe lower cut off and constrained by deh in main project area)

Deposit Resource Tonnes DTR Assay %
Classification  (Mt) % Fe SiO, Al,O; Mn P LOI
Iman Inferred 152 383 292 378 34 53 0.10 0.7

(0 — 150m depth from surface)

Papagayo Indicated 54 291 258 388 4.1 6.4 0.09 1.2
(0 — 190m depth from surface) Inferred 439 31.0 .92538.8 3.9 56 0.09 15
Buena Orden Inferred 49 33.3 238 405 45 56 0.09 24
(0 — 190m depth from surface)
Total 69.4 326 26,5 387 3.8 56 0.09 14

Resource Quality

The DTR analysis recovers the magnetic fractiomfr@ sample, which is then assayed. The DTR tesk wor
provides information on the recovery of magnetitat tcould be expected from a commercial plant agdi@e to
the quality of magnetite concentrate that couldppeduced. SRK has estimated that 32.6% of the winer
resource could be recovered by magnetic separatiammagnetite concentrate containing 63% ironveng low
phosphorus content of 0.01% (Table 3).

Table 3
Zapucay Project
Mineral Resource DTR magnetic fraction, August 2012
(no lower cut applied)

Deposit Tonnes Assays % (Estimated from DTr compatss)
Million Fe SiO, Al1,05 Mn P
CerrcImar 5.€ 63.8 3.€ 0.4 2.3 0.01
Cerra Papagayo 15.2 62.9 4.8 0.6 1.6 0.01
Buena Orden 1.6 60.2 7.4 0.9 1.9 0.01
Total 22.6 62.¢ 4.8 0.€ 1.6 0.01
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

SRK considers that the Mineral Resources meetritezia of having reasonable prospects for everdagahomic
extraction, as defined by the JORC code, throughd#rivation of an optimised pit shell, and theli@ption of a
cut-off grade.

Mine Planning

It is proposed to mine the deposits by conventiapan pit mining methods using hydraulic excavatord off
road haul trucks. The preliminary mine plans ergésthe Papagayo mineralisation being mined in dizparate
pits located in a NW-SE direction with an overalhdth of 3.1kms, the Buena Orden ridge mineratiaalieing
mined in four separate pits trending in a NW-SEediipon with an overall length of 3.5kms and the nma
mineralisation in five pits developed in a W-E diien over a length of 2kms. Figure 6.

The parameters considered in the PFS studiesdarghn pits are:
¢ Bench height: ore 5m, waste 10m and final benc@0at;
« Bench Angle: slope of bench 65° and an overalleskmgel 45°;
¢ Width of ramp 16 meters
< Average ramp gradients of 10%.

Figure 6: Preliminary site Layout Plan
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Concentration
It is planned to process the ore in a conventianafjnetite concentrator to produce the concentrate f
pelletisation. The concentrator will consist of:

« Primary, secondary and tertiary crushing;

e Multi-stage grinding;

¢ Low intensity magnetic separation (“LIMS”); and
* Concentrate filtration.

The concentrator flow sheet is based on the resfilis comprehensive programme of metallurgical etk

completed on core and bulk samples to determingpitlysical characteristics of the ore and the optingrind

for the recovery of a high quality magnetite coricaie. The design of the flow sheet was based emdsults of
the following test work on samples from Papagayw laman:

« Comminution tests;

¢ Grind establishment and fine grinding;

¢ Wet Low Intensity Magnetic Separation (“LIMS”) adrious final liberation sizes;
« Wet table separation on wet LIMS non-magnetic potst and

« High Intensity Magnetic Separation on wet tabledoicts.

Generally, the magnetite mineralisation frorap&gayo and Iman are very similar in bdte guality of
concentrate produced and in their physical propgrivith material from both areas being of medilardhess
and medium abrasion.

The LIMS testwork, undertaken on samples of low high manganese material from both Papagayo and, Ima
demonstrated that a high-grade magnetite concenivith very low phosphorus and sulphur contents loan
produced. The expected concentrate chemistry gepted in Table 4 at a grind of p80 of 53um:

« Both Papagayo and Iman low Mn ores gave very higllity concentrates > 69% Fe and between 1.0 to
1.44% Mn;

< The high Mn ores give concentrates with a lowegigle between 66.6 to 67% Fe but with an increased
Mn level of 3 to 4.3% Mn;

« The majority of Mn reports to the LIMS nanagnetic product;

¢ Weight recoveries to LIMS concentrate ranges fréi3% to 41.3%;

e All ores produce LIMS concentrates with vdoyw phosphorous levels which will in turmoduce
a Merchant Pig Iron with very low levels of phospis;

e Similarly, all LIMS concentrates are very low insour;

« Silica levels vary between 0.9 to 1.6 % and alumidaes are less than 0.3%.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Table 4
Zapucay Project
Forecast concentrator quality

Ore Type
Concentrate grade %
Constituent  Papagayo Papagayo Iman Iman
Low Mn High Mn Low Mn High Mn
Fe 6S.24 66.66 62.88 67.2C
Sio, 1.22 1.15 0.85 1.57
A1,0; 0.13 0.19 0.25 0.29
MnO 1.93 5.11 1.28 3.96
S 0.002 <0.001 0.009 0.001
P 0.002 0.002 0.003 0.001

Pelletisation
The low and high manganese concentrates will bgpagmed through a grate kiln pellet plant usingvptised
charcoal as fuel to produce low and high mangape8ets. Grate kiln pellet plants of the size bedogsidered

for the Zapucay Project are in common use in Chima it is anticipated that Chinese supply will lbeght for
this section of the project

EPMS has developed indicative chemistries for féllixed and acid pellets (Table 5) based on theceomate

chemistries from the high and low manganese maténden Papagayo and Iman based on the following
assumptions:

*  For fully fluxed pellets the following assumptiongre used:
* Bentonite addition of 8 kg/t pellets;
« Limestone addition of between 25 to 40 kg/t; and
« Dolomite addition of between 0 to 10 kg/t.

e For acid pellets the following assumptions weredis
« Bentonite addition of 10 kg/t pellets; and
« Limestone addition of between 7 to 10 kg/t.

Table 5
Zapucay Project
Papagayo & Iman low and high manganese ores
Indicative chemistry for fully fluxed and acid pellets

Grade %
Fully Fluxed Pellets Acid Pellets
Constituent Average Average Average Average
Low Mn High Mn Low Mn High Mn

Fe 65.77 63.38 66.72 64.46
Sio, 1.49 1.77 1.56 1.85
Al1,0; 0.30 0.31 0.32 0.34
Mn 1.15 3.16 1.17 3.21
P 0.003 0.002 0.003 0.002
S 0.005 0.003 0.005 0.005
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Mini Blast Furnace

MiniTec have provided a design and costing for airblast furnace suitable for processing iron oedeps
produced from the Zapucay magnetite ores. Fullyeitlpellets will be converted to MPI in mini bldstnaces
designed to use charcoal as the reductant. Thdogenent envisages the construction of probably ftwoaces
each with a production capacity of approximatel®,200 tonnes of pig iron per year (Table 6). Chardased
mini blast furnaces of this size are common in Brakhe furnaces will have the ability to generatehigh
temperature blast and also fuel an electricity oegation plant, which will provide over one third the
electricity demand of the project.

Table 6
Zapucay Project
Proposed MBF Productivity

Factor Units Value
Productivity t/m3/day 2.4
Working Volume  m3 250
Operating Days days/year 350
Total

Production tlyear 210

Basic pig iron is used predominantly in electric aurnaces and this quality of pig iron is the meglely traded
in the world market. Indicative specifications @sixz pig iron and pig iron from the low and highnganese
mineralisation are shown in Table 7. The low maeganmaterial produces a product very similar tachbgig

iron but with extremely low phosphorus and sulpfire manganese level can be controlled by gradeat@nd

the typical pig iron product from the project ikdiy to be a basic pig iron with very low levelsgifosphorus and
sulphur.Of particular interest is the potential to obtaowIMn ores from Curtume or Areicua. This can beduse
blend with the higher Mn ores from the Zapucay &rbjo allow the production of a variety of low gpborous,
low sulphur pig iron products with varying Mn conts.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

i s s+

Figure?: Mini Blast Furnace, Brazil

Table 7
Zapucay Project
Indicative Pig Iron Chemistry

Constituent Basic Pig Iron  MPI from MPI from
Specification Low Mn Ore High Mn Ore
Grade% Grade% Grade%
Iron >93 93.8 92
Carbon 3.5t04.5 4.2 4.2
Silicon <15 0.6 0.6
Manganese 05t01.0 1.0to 1.2 3.0t03.2
Sulphur <0.05 <0.01 <0.01
Phosphorus <0.12 <0.01 <0.01
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Charcoal Production

Charcoal production will be undertaken in dedicatedllities using the DPC pyrolysis technology (kg 8).
Gladiator has the exclusive worldwide license fog tise of this technology outside of Brazil. Unltkaditional
charcoal making methods, the DPC process is mucte rapergy efficient, which translates to a sigaific
increase in yield. The DPC process has very lowssioms of pyroligneous gases and liquors and isefibve
environmentally acceptable compared to traditiocharcoal making processes. The majoritycloarcoal
produced will be consumed in lump form in the ntitast furnace with charcoal fines being used inpghbet
plant. This ensures that all charcoal producedpland fines will be consumed by the project.

DRYING PYROLYSIS COOLING
(0 REAGTORIN (D REACTOR I (3} HEACTOR IN (@) COMBUSTION {3} HEAT
DRYING PHASE PYROLYSIS PHASE COOLING PHASE CHAMBER EXCHANGER
(6] BURNER O FANS

Figure 8: Schematic diagram of the DPC Pyrolysisdtrss
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Timber supply for the charcoal plant will be obtdnfrom the commercially operated plantations led¢ah the
northern and central regions of Uruguay, with auon the small diameter thinnings which othentiaee little
or no market value. As a part of the PFS, the compges undertaken testwork using all species gramsh
commercially available in northern Uruguay as vaslla clone developed in Brazil (on production)cmmparison
of the charcoal yield.

The following conclusions are made from the teskwor
» All species perform well as feedstock to the DP&ter:

o All species gave good charcoal yields in the glant, with higher yields to be expected in
practice. An average yield of 39.7% was achieved,;
0 There was no substantial difference found betwialer with or without bark, allowing the use

of timber with barkon in the DPC reactors. The use of timber with karkwill reduce
harvesting costs, especially with pinus species;

o All species showed relatively consistent procasesi, despite significant variations in the
moisture content of the timber samples of betwdketosb8%. Timbers containing moisture
contents at these levels generally cannot be sepidicessed using traditional charcoal making
methods;

* All species showed good charcoal chemistriegnently suited for MPI production, and which
were consistent across all samples. Volatile ahcdcantents are in line with expectations givenfiked
carbon. Typical charcoal chemistries obtained were:

* Fixed Carbon 70.4t0 72.3%
e Ash Content 0.74t0 1.36%
* Volatile Content 26.0 to 28.8%
e Moisture Content <5%;

» All eucalypt species show good fragmentation ingli@ed typical bulk densities comparable to chascoal
made with traditional methods, and will produce fucharcoals suitable for use in a mini blast fuenac

Initially timber supply will be obtained from tharge number of commercially operated plantatiooatied in the
northern and central regions of Uruguay, with aifoon the small diameter thinnings which othenhigee little
or no market value to the plantation owner. Atehd of 2011 there were some 240,000 ha of planttigthin a
100 km radius of the project site in the northegion of Uruguay. Additionally there are furtheampiations in
the eastern and central regions within a simildiusof the project. The net requirement of thgquitas the
equivalent to approximately 50,000 ha.

It's The Company intention to undertake a redesifjthe DPC reactors to both increase thendpctivity
and simplify their construction. These modificas are intended to reduce both capital and dpegraosts
compared to those assumed in this study. As the BEt@ology is able to process any biomass feekistih a
diameter greater than approximately 20mm, it isrided to work with plantation groups in Uruguayrtaximise
the collection of suitable feedstock, including en&tl that would otherwise be discarded duringdbeventional
plantation harvesting operations.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)
The longer term intention is to work with the plaidn owners to establish new plantations. Thigrsffthe

opportunity for a reduction in logistics costs thgh optimisation of plantation location with respecthe project
as well as the opportunity to select timber speeiith favourable charcoal characteristics. Urugudfers
taxation incentives for plantation development andch of the area surrounding the project is classed
‘Forestry Priority’ zone by the Uruguayan Governien

Project Logisticsand I nfrastructure
The proposed transport logistics for the pig ir@toi truck the pig iron from site to a stockpileldmading facility

on the rail line near the border with Brazil, ataigce of approximately 98kms. From there the prtsdwil be
railed to a stockpile and loading facility at therfof Rio Grande in Brazil, a distance of 687ki8s€ Figure 1).
The export terminal has a draft of up to 12 meaireds is currently serviced by Handymax and Panarizaxi s
ships. The Company is still evaluating other ogitmplace the product into the market since dsous were
held with the Uruguayan port and rail authoritiegarding their proposed new port, which has therg@t to
reduce project transportation costs.

The Uruguayan government-owned, national elecjripitovider will supply electricity to the projecA high
voltage line currently supplies power to a nearblggnine located to the west of the Zapucay Prajaget 22kms
of 150 kV power line will need to be constructecctmnect the project to the national grid.

Process water for the project will be sourced feomumber of water supply dams that will be conséaievithin
the project site. These dams will collect and staiefall from across the project site. The averageual rainfall
in the area is estimated at approximately 1,300mdnisrelatively consistent throughout the year.

A tailings storage impoundment will be constructéakse to the location of the processing operatians, will
also act as water collection and storage. The vi@llthe water storage dams and the tailings imgment will be
constructed using materials sourced from within ghgect site, including waste rock from the pnepsof the
initial open pits.

The work force for the project will be based in tbeal region, which is home to several towns aainfng
communities. Employees will also be drawn from lgnger population centres at Tacuarembo, 40 mindiiee
from site, and Rivera, 60 minutes drive from sitds envisaged that part of the workforce will fsurced from
Montevideo, the capital of Uruguay, on a drive-iive-out basis. The project includes a permanent
accommodation camp for these personnel. Employaethé satellite charcoal plants will be sourcethimi the
local communities wherever possible.

The overall employment for the project is a totél6®4 between operating (531) and maintenance (123)
personnel. The average cost of employment is ettthet approximately US$30,300 per year, per person

Environmental

The Company lodged its Project Communication Docimeth the Uruguayan Department for the Environtnen
during March 2012. This document summarises th@qeed development at Zapucay and also presents the
baseline environmental data for the project aremlgement of the document represents the first stghe
environmental approvals process. The Departmenepéed the document as a sufficient descriptionhef t
project, which initiated the project approvals @es which allows The Company to proceed with thal fProject
submission once defined.

-14-



AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIE

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Capital Cost / Cash Operating Costs (as of September 2012)
The overall capital cost of the project is estirdaa¢ US$ 455 million, as summarised in Graph 1thaf, US$

378 million will be upfront, with the balance dugithe first year of operations. The implementaschedule is
estimated at 18 months to the commissioning ofiteeblast furnace, with the second furnace corsioised 12
months later. The construction and commissioninghef charcoal plants will be staged to fit in withis
construction schedule. The overall production cémtshe pig iron is 276 US$ per tonne MPI, fob dod the
production of pellets is 111 US$ per tonne MPI,.fob

Graph 1
Zapucay Project
Capital Cost (200,00MPI/y)
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Expansion of the project to 800,000 tonnes per péanig iron, which will consume all of the projécipellet
production, is forecast to require an additionaU86 million, giving a total capital cost of US$6dM@lion.

Merchant Pig Iron Market

The Company will have a competitive advantage owany of the Brazilian MPI producers with its captiv
high grade iron ore supply and relatively low cokarcoal. Inland logistics costs are likely to bevér than
those of many of the Brazilian and Russian produteat often have longer haul distances to loagorgs. For
the US and Asian markets, Gladiator may have a siofleight cost disadvantage in comparison with the
Brazilian and CIS suppliers due to the draft regtms at the Uruguayan ports of Montevideo ang Beantos.
Pig iron is typically shipped to the US and Asiaarkets in Panamax vessels (which have draft of tabdu
metres). Another possible export port, Rio GrandeSdl in Brazil, can accommodate Panamax vesgeis. |
recognised that it is standard practice for vesselsruguay to top off at Brazilian ports en rotgethe USA,
reducing the freight disadvantage. In the finallgsis, any such disadvantage will reflect itselttie FOB price
achievable.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Logically, the benchmark comparator for Gladiatottie Brazilian MP1 industry with which it will beompeting
in all markets. With an estimated operating cos$a75 per tonne, the Zapucay Project appears te hav
significant cost advantage over many, if not mdsthe Brazilians producers, whose current costs@® are
well in excess of $400 per tonne and whose futastscwill be influenced by the forecast movemeritan ore
prices. This cost advantage, perhaps temperedoall extent by an ocean freight cost disadvantadglee US
and Asian markets, is key to the success of thgegtras there is idle capacity of 6 to 7 milliomnes in Brazil
which could be brought back into production relalyvquickly if margins improve sufficiently and asastained.
Graph 2 presents the value chain for a nationatilBaa MPI supply to a US Midwest steel mill, comed to
that estimated for the Zapucay Project (subjectatmpletion of Definitive Feasibility Study), showirthat the
Zapucay Project has a clear cost advantage.

Graph 2
Zapucay Project
Value Chain Comparison
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MPI Pricing

It's The Company opinion that MPI prices are likédyaverage around US$475 per tonne, fob, withiange of
US$425 to US$550 per tonne, over the short to nedérm, after which general steel industry trendkdsive
the price. These trends can be summarised as:
 Demand for MPI is likely to increase at a rate édaaor greater than the growth in global crudeskte
production over the period to 2020;
» Rising Electric Arc Furnace (EAF) steelmaking vdtive higher demand for steel scrap, putting upward
pressure on steel scrap prices, and hence thesfosther ferrous metallics including MPI. Genbyral
MPI will attract a price premium over scrap andestferrous metallics.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Financial Evaluation
A review of the project was undertaken by Grantrfitan in Uruguay. This review assessed the potdotidhe

project to access the Uruguayan Government’s imast incentive schemes, the impact of potentiatian
changes in Uruguay, and the overall project casfsfland financial returns. Three scenarios wereidered using
FOB prices for the MPI from Brazil (475US$/t fobjdathe SBB Raw Materials Reference for the petibtgrice
(65.2%Fe; 152US$/t fob). Table 8 shows the redoittthe three price scenarios.

Table 8
Zapucay Project
Indicative Pig Iron Chemistry

NPV @ 10% IRR
‘ Before- After -
Scenario Before-Tax After-Tax Tax Tax
(USs (US$
millions) millions) (%) (%)
Average Price 309.9 253.6 20 19
Downside Price 154.8 116.1 15 14
Upside Price 524.1 445.9 26 24

Since Thorton’s review the Uruguayan Governmenphased a new mining law that defines the “meganah
(large scale mining). This law redefines the proggonomics and applies to the Zapucay Project Bvaugh
Thorton’s envisaged some of the taxation changestalthis new law his works need an exhaustivieveto get

a more accurate projected financial return.

BIOMASS PYROLYSIS TECHNOLOGY

Licensing Agreement
During July 2010, the Company entered into an agese, “The Patent Technology and Know-How Licence
Agreement”, with the inventors of the DPC biomagolysis process.

The licence grants to Gladiator the worldwide rigiwith the exclusion of Brazil, in the field ofrbanisation
and pyrolysis of biomass, mainly wood and otheremalls (with the exception of tyres) for the protioic of
charcoal. Gladiator is able to proceed to develwp@mmercially exploit the technology within tregritory and
is also able to sub-licence the use of the teclyydierritorially or to industry sectors.

The Licence is for an initial term of six years lWwigéxtensions of four further terms of three yeamwvided
commercial milestones are met in commissioning tplaar payments in lieu of commissioning fees to the
inventors.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

DPC Process

The DPC Process comprises three phases occurnmngltaneously in three interconnected horizontahsil
(Figure 8) to produce charcoal from suitable orgaf@iedstock, such as timber from eucalypt plantatio
Compared to conventional and traditional methodscleércoal production, the DPC Process offers many
advantages including:

Higher yield;

Lower fines generation;

Significantly faster production cycles;

The ability to process green, freshly harvestetéim
A dramatically reduced environmental impact; and
Lower overall charcoal production costs.

The Process also leads to a reduction in timbesuwoption, resulting in minimising the area of péditn
necessary to support a given level of charcoal yotioh, with a saving in timber production costshéf
compared to other methods, the Process generatesnger charcoal with higher fixed carbon contamd more
uniform product quality. The charcoal produced lxy Process is very suitable for use as a reduictamini blast
furnaces. Gladiator believes that the Procesesepts a valuable addition to its Uruguay Pig Pooject and
will assist in ensuring that the project will bghly competitive when compared to other pig iroodurcers.

DPC is working closely with the Company on the gesind costing of the charcoal production facildy the
Uruguay Pig Iron Project and has completed charpoaduction test work on suitable timbers availaiolehe
project.

GOLD AND NICKEL EXPLORATION

HOGAN'S PROJECT, EAST KALGOORLIE
(E26/108, E15/774, E15/803 and E15/1044)

Octagonal Resources (WA) Pty Ltd, a wholly ownebisidiary of Octagonal Resources Limited continaad
active exploration programme over the Hogan’s Jgenture tenements, which concluded in an offgruchase
Gladiator's 30% interest in its Hogan'’s Projélitnements - exploration licences E26/108, E15/F1%/ 803 and
E15/1044 located approximately 25km east of KandaidWestern Australia were included in the agragmea
which Gladiator received 1,500,000 fully paid €%ain Octagonal Resources Limited.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

Competent Person Statement

The information in this Report that relates to MieResources is based on information compiled byAkhold van der
Heyden, who is a Member of the Australian Instinftélining and Metallurgy and a Director of H&S Caultants Pty
Ltd. Mr van der Heyden has sufficient experienelevant to the style of mineralisation and typedeposit under
consideration and to the activity being undertakemualify as a Competent Person as defined ir2@4 Edition of the
‘Australasian Code for Reporting of Exploration Bks, Mineral Resources and Ore Reserves’ (JORGLddr van der
Heyden consents to the inclusion in this repothefmatters based on the information in the forrd eontext in which it
appears.
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

TENEMENT SUMMARY

Joint Venture Tenements — Isla Cristalina Belt

Area Name Company Name| Licence Number| Area (ha.)| Status
Areicua MONTEMURA PP1832/06 1036 Granted
Paso de las Piedras BOLIR PP1911/06 3003 Granted
Tortoni ERMAL PE1143/08 124 Granted
Vichadero Centro-Sy MONTEMURA PP391/09 1800 Granted
Curtume N MONTEMURA PP1810/09 246 Granted
Curtume N MONTEMURA PP1811/09 474 Granted
Siete Porteras | MONTEMURA PP2144/09 925 Granted
Cerro del Imén BOLIR PP62/10 796 Granted
P° de las Piedras | MONTEMURA PP123/10 6105 Granted
Cerro Papagayo | MONTEMURA PE373/10 141 Granted
Papagayo BOLIR PP493/10 202 Granted
Zapucay Sur ERMAL PE1656/10 285 Granted
Siete Porteras | MONTEMURA PE878/11 221 Application
Areicua MONTEMURA PE881/11 125 Application
Papagayo BOLIR PE1569/11 82 Application
Veta Tanita MONTEMURA PE2861/11 690 Application
Zapucay Oeste BRIMOL PP2864/11 2019 | Application
Hierro USF PP390/10 6046 | Application
Hierro FERROMINAS PP881/10 7376 | Application
Cerro Manganeso | FERROMINAS PP1721/10 143 Granted
Reserva Minera | FERROMINAS PP2091/10 1434 Granted
Cerro de La Tuna | FERROMINAS PP2492/10 2503 | Application
Arroyo del Abrojal | FERROMINAS PP69/11 2139 Granted
Curtume N FERROMINAS PP397/11 521 Application
Zapucay FERROMINAS PP1350/11 1746 Granted
Reserva Minera | FERROMINAS PE1571/11 425 Granted
Reserva Minera | FERROMINAS PE1575/11 215 Granted
Reserva Minera | FERROMINAS PE1577/11 598 Application
A° Carpinteria FERROMINAS PP1751/11 327 Granted
A° Carpinteria FERROMINAS PP1752/11 138 Granted
A° Carpinteria JOUTES PE1753/11 211 Application
Curtume FERROMINAS PP1960/11 492 Application
Curtume FERROMINAS PP1961/11 658 Application
Curtume JOUTES PE1962/11 530 Application
Curtume FERROMINAS PE1965/11 473 Application
Monteiro JOUTES PE1971/11 359 Application
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REVIEW OF OPERATIONS (continued)

TENEMENT SUMMARY (continued)

Monteiro JOUTES |PE1973/11 455 |Application
Curtume FERROMINAS| PE1975/11 236 |Application
Siete Porteras | FERROMINAS| PP2561/1] 2231 | Application
Cerro del Iman | FERROMINAS| PP2722/11 552 Granted
Arroyo Carpinterig FERROMINAS| PP2731/11 1077 | Application
Arroyo Carpinterig FERROMINAS| PP2732/11 1346 | Application
Areicua JOUTES PP3078/11 997 |Application
Vichadero W | FERROMINAS| PP3344/11 269 |Application
Siete Porteras N| FERROMINAS| PP3763/1] 3436 | Application
P° de las Piedrag FERROMINAS| PP26/12 | 2518 | Application
Areicua JOUTES PP905/12| 653 | Application
Areicua KYNTU PE1059/14 442 | Application
Areicua KYNTU PE1067/134 876 |Application
Areicua HAMFU PP1072/12 598 |Application
Caraguata FERROMINAS| PP1298/17 4204 | Application
Cerro de la Tuna FERROMINAS| PP1911/12 2517 | Application
Siete Porteras N| FERROMINAS| PP1913/14 2549 | Application
Curtume FERROMINAS| PP191/13| 2211 | Application
Areicua FERROMINAS| PP724/13| 306 |Application
TOTAL 72,081

100% owned tenements — Isla Cristalina Belt

Area Name Company Licence Area St
Name Number (ha.)
Acegua Ferrominas PP 2513/10 10,274 Applica
Coronilla Ferrominas| PE 2457/10 7,458 Applicat
TOTAL 17,732
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Your directors present their report on the considid entity consisting of Gladiator Resources ledhiaind its
controlled entities for the financial year endedJ8@e 2013. This report is made in accordance avitgsolution

of directors.

DIRECTORS

The following persons were directors of Gladiat@sBurces Limited at any time since the start ofittencial
year to the date of this report:

Daniel Bruno
Oscar Leén
Malcolm Draffin
Juan Jorge
Andrew Draffin
Alec Pismiris
David Argyle
John Palermo
Leonard Dean
Mark Gordon

Non-Executive
Non-Executifdppointed on 22 March 2013)
Non-Executive - (Apjmted on 22 March 2013)
Non-Execuiy&ppointed on 7 May 2013)
Non-Executive - (Apinted on 21 May 2013)
Non-ExecutiveResigned on 22 March 2013)
Non-ExecutiveRgsigned on 22 March 2013)
Executive - (Besd on 30 November 2012)
Chairman - (Resthon 17 December 2012)
Non-Executive efigned on 21 May 2013)

Stuart John Hall Non-ExecutiviRegigned on 7 December 2012)

Robert Timothy Adams  Executive - (Resigneddviay 2013)

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company during they&as mineral exploration.

OPERATING RESULTS

The consolidated loss for the year after incomentax $(141,786) (2012: loss of $884,218).

DIVIDENDS PAID OR RECOMMENDED
No dividends were paid or recommended for the gaded 30 June 2013.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS

During the year, the following shares, options padformance rights were either issued, grantecercesed:

Date Details PNelrJfgqrtﬁ;r?;e Number of options E;ﬁggse Expiry Date
Rights Listed Unlisted

06/07/2012 Unlisted options expired - - - 1,500,000 0.35 06/07/2012

07/11/2012 Exercise of performance rights - 7,500,000 - - - 31/05/2015

31/12/2012 Unlisted options expired - - - 14,017,389 0.40  31/12/2012

31/12/2012 Unlisted options expired - 750,000 0.30  31/12/2012
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OPERATING RESULTS AND FINANCIAL POSITION
The net amount of the consolidated loss for the gar providing for income tax was $(141,786)120loss of

$884,218).

The net assets of the consolidated entity at 36 20t.3 were $15,311,559 (2012: $15,234,910). #itdate, there was
cash at bank of $792,203 (2012: $3,545,811).

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

The Company and its controlled entities continusalrtexploration activities. Further details aed in the
review of operations section of the annual report.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS

The Company and its controlled entities intenddotitiue their exploration activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION

The Company has assessed whether there are amylaardr significant environmental regulations atiapply. It has
determined that the risk of non-compliance is lawg has not identified any compliance breachesiduhe year.

EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, thapamy received a winding up notice in the orde$85,000. The
directors intend to repay this amount and do ndicipate that this will impact the company and digerations going
forward.

Other than the above, there has not arisen inntieeval between the end of the financial year deddate of this report
any item, transaction or event of a material angsual nature likely, in the opinion of the direstaf the Company, to
affect significantly the operations of the Compating results of those operations, or the statdfaira of the Company,
in future financial years.

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

Oscar Ledén — Director

Mr Leon is a Uruguayan CPA with more than 25 yedmsxperience in corporate Finance and Managerhenserved as
Director and Chief Financial Officer of Latin Amea Operations for Compafiia Minera San Gregorio,SAmpafiia
Minera San Jose S.A., subsidiaries of American Ress Corp. and Rea Gold Inc. of Canada. He altiripated in the
financing and development of the San Gregorio galte in Uruguay.

Mr. Leon has worked for several mining companieEwrton Resources, Southern Era, Yamiri Gold.

During the past three years, Mr Leon has not seageal director of any other listed companies.
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Malcolm Draffin — Director

Mr. M.Draffin is a Fellow of the Institute of Chared Accountants in Australia with over 40 yeasgerience in public
practice and has held directorships in a numbdéwstralian listed companies and has worked mairitly §mall to
Medium Business Enterprises including a numbehénRinance Sector and has assisted these busiiresfigshases from
start up to Initial Public Offering.

Mr. Draffin presently advises a broad range of besses including companies involved in the finazaggfal markets,
service industries, primary production and resasirce

During the past three years, Malcolm Draffin have as a director of MRI Holdings Limited.

Juan Jorge — Director
Mr. Jorge is a Uruguayan lawyer and notary andneeber of the Lawyers College and Notaries Associan Uruguay.

He has more than 15 years’ experience in corptaatespecializing in contracts, having previouslyrised with Guyer
and Regules and PricewaterhouseCoopers prior thirtgethe legal department of the Union Group Irdéiomal Holdings
Limited (“Union Group”) in 2008. Union Group is aiyately owned firm which holds significant straiegnterests in
businesses spanning the agriculture, energy, fgrasfrastructure, minerals, oil & gas and redhés sectors in Latin
America, and has recently become a substantia¢sbkter of Gladiator. More information on Union @pas available at
www.uniongrp.com

During the past three years, Mr Jorge has not deage director of any other listed companies.

Andrew Draffin — Director
Mr A.Draffin is a member of the Institute of Chagd Accountants in Australia and holds BacheloCommerce and is a

partner in the Chartered Accounting firm Draffin M& & Co. Andrew is a Director, Chief Financialf@ér and
Company Secretary of listed, unlisted and privamganies across a broad range of industries imgy@ixploration,
energy, finance and investment. His focus is oariaial reporting, treasury management, managensentiating and
corporate advisory services, areas where he haddjaixperience over 16 years.

During the past three years, Andrew Draffin hasestias a director of MRI Holdings Limited, Enviroddion Limited; and
HydroMet Corporation Limited.

Daniel Bruno — Director
Mr Bruno has over 15 years of investment industgeeience. He began his career with the Ontaraxhiers’ Pension

Plan Board, and then transitioned to investmenkingnvhere most of his career was spent with GM&u8eges Ltd. in
Toronto, Canada, as a Director in the InvestmenkBg group. Mr Bruno has also worked as a Marga@imector of a
US-based investment bank. Born in Uruguay andflireSpanish, Mr Bruno’s background and continuilgtionships in
South America will help Gladiator further its demeient initiatives in Uruguay.

During the past three years, Mr Bruno has not seagea director of any other listed companies.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Andrew Bursill (appointed 31 December 2012) - B. Agr. Ec, CA Joint Company Secretary
Mr Bursill holds a Bachelor of Agricultural Econarsi from the University of Sydney and is a CharteAedountant,
qualifying with PricewaterhouseCoopers (formerlicWaterhouse).

Since commencing his career as an outsourced CE@ampany secretary in 1998, Mr Bursill has bee@OEompany
secretary and/or Director for numerous ASX listedl|isted public and private companies, in a rangendustries
covering mineral exploration, oil and gas explanatibiotechnology, technology, medical devicesaiketenture capital
and wine manufacture and distribution.

REMUNERATION REPORT (AUDITED)

This report outlines the remuneration arrangemerpace for directors and executives of the Corgpan

Remuneration policy

The remuneration policy of Gladiator Resources teohihas been designed to align director and execotjectives
with shareholder and business objectives by progidi fixed remuneration component and offering igelong-term
incentives based on key performance areas affetim@ompany’s ability to attract and retain thetlexecutives and
directors to run and manage the Company.

The Board'’s policy for determining the nature anwbant of remuneration for board members and seniecutives of
the Company is as follows:

The remuneration policy setting out the terms amtlitions for the executive directors and othelicreexecutives was
developed by the Board.

Executive remuneration and other terms of employnae reviewed annually by the Board having regtrd
performance against goals set at the start oféhe yelevant comparative information and indepehdgrpert advice.

As well as a base salary, remuneration packagdadmcsuperannuation, retirement and terminatioritlements,
performance-related bonuses and fringe benefits.

Remuneration packages are set at levels thantereled to attract and retain executives capdhieamaging
the Company’s diverse operations.

Remuneration and other terms of employment foettecutive directors and certain other senior exezsit
have been formalised in service agreements.

Remuneration of non-executive directors is deteechiby the Board within the maximum amount approved
by the shareholders from time to time and whichientty stands at $250,000 per annum.

The Board undertakes an annual review of its perdoice against goals set at the start of the ydas. T
Board may exercise discretion in relation to appgvincentives, bonuses, and options. The poikcy
designed to attract the highest calibre of exeeatand reward them for performance that resultsrig-term
growth in shareholder wealth.

All remuneration paid to directors and executivesvalued at the cost to the Company and
expensed.
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The Company currently has no performance-based meration component built into director and
executive remuneration packages.

30 June 2013

Key management personnel compensation

Details of the nature and amount of emolument faigach director of Gladiator Resources Limiteel set

out below:
Directors Salary and fees  Superannuation SBP TOTAL
L Dean 26,49: 13,62 6,77 46,890
R T Adams 260,75 110,40( 371,153
J Palermo 336,30¢ 110,40( 446,705
S J Hall 12,50( 6,77: 19,272
D Bruno 15,011 18,40( 33,411
M Gordon 54,20( : 54,200
D Argyle - -
A Pismiris 13,17¢ 13,175
O Leon 6,84¢ 6,845
M Draffin : -
J Jorge : : -
725,28: 13,62 252,744 991,651
30 June 2012
Other
Directors Salary and fees Superannuation SBP Benefits TOTAL
L Dean 12,50( 13,62 56,62¢ - 82,753
R T Adams 356,67¢ 36,00 49,924 442,599
J Palermo 255,47¢ 36,00( 291,478
S J Hall 30,00( 6,00( 36,000
D Bruno 50,78¢ 72,82¢ 123,613
705,431 13,62 207,45\ 49,924 976,443

Remuneration — Performance Rights
Refer to Note 22 for details of performance righstied to directors during the year.

Remuneration - Options (2013)
No options were granted or exercised during yede@r30 June 30 2013.
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Remuneration - Options (2012)

Grant Grant Vested Value Per Exercise First Last
No. Date No. Option at Price Exercise Exercise
Grant Date $ $ Date Date
D Bruno 750,000 30/11/2011 750,000 $0.0141 $0.30/1298011 31/12/2012
750,000 30/11/2011 750,000 $0.0075 $0.40 08/12/2031/12/2012

The grant of options is to provide an incentiveftdure services he will provide to the Company and
acknowledgement of a past service. The directonsider that the incentive provided is cost effectio the
Company as opposed to alternative incentives infdha of a monetary bonus or director’s fees. Théoms
were valued using the Binomial Option Valuation inoetology.

The model inputs for options granted during the yealed 30 June 2012 included:
(a) options are granted for no consideration

(b) exercise prices: $0.30 & $0.40

(c) grant date: 30 November 2011

(d) expiry dates: 31 December 2012

(e) share price at grant date: $0.13

(f) expected price volatility of the Company’s sk&ir86.81%

(g) risk-free interest rate: 3.43%

(h) discount for share options not being listed%20

During the year ended 30 June 2012, no optionsedsda directors for remuneration purposes were
forfeited or expired, however 3,160,000 optionsenexercised during the year.
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Details of remuneration: cash bonuses

and options

For each cash bonus and grant of options includethé tables on page 34, the percentage of the
available bonus or grant that was paid, or thateeksin the financial year, and the percentage that
was forfeited because the person did not meeteivice and performance criteria is set out below:

Cash Bonus Options
Financial Minimum Maximum
. . . i total val total val
Name Paid Forfeited Year Vested Forfeited y;zzzr:n o(f) a:a\::: u;et o(f) a:a\:t\ u;et
% % granted % % . g y g y
options to vest to vest
may vest $ $
L Dean 2013 - - - - -
2012 -- -- -- -- --
RT Adams 2013 - - - - -
2012 -- -- -- - -
2013 -- -- -- - -
J Palermo -- --
2012 -- -- -- -- --
2013 -- -- -- - -
SJ Hall -- -- 2012 B B 3 3 3
2013 -- -- -- - -
D Bruno -- -- 2012 100% 3 B B B

Interest in shares, options and performance rightef the Company

As at 30 June 2013, the directors’ interests ireshjaoptions and performance rights of GladiatosdReces
Limited were:

Number of options ~ Number of performance

Current Directors Number of shares over ordinary shares rights
D. Bruno 890,909 175,909 -
O. Ledn - - -
M. Draffin - - -
A. Draffin
J. Jorge - - -
890,909 175,909 -

Remuneration of Directors (as at 30 June 2013)
All Directors are paid $25,000 per annum, paid tprrin arrears for consulting fees.

Remuneration of Company Secretary (as at 30 June 2013)
Franks and Associates has been appointed aothpady’s Secretary effective from 31 December 2ahd, the

provision of secretarial services is $3,750 penth. As at 30 June 2013, the remuneration pakdaoks and
Associates was $73,155 which includes compamgt®@l and finance function services.

[END OF REMUNERATION REPORT]
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DIRECTORS' MEETINGS

The following table sets out the number of meetittygs Company’s directors held during the year ergli@dune
2013 and the number of meetings attended by eaebttoii:

Number eligible to attend Number attended
Leonard Dean 3 3
Robert (Tim) Adams 5 4
John Palermo 3 3
Stuart Hall 3 2
Daniel Bruno 5 5
Mark Gordon 2 2
Alec Pismiris 2 2

SHARE OPTIONS

As at 30 June 2013, there existed the followingt@miding options to acquire ordinary shares:

Listed options
137,996,956 options remain on issue, exercisal$#0.40 on or before 30 June 2015.

Unlisted options
1,000,000 options remain on issue, exercisabl®.80%n or before 31 December 2013; and

1,000,000 options remain on issue, excercisat$e.40 on or before 31 December 2013.

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE OF DIRECTORS

The Company has not, during or since the finanaalt, in respect of any person who is or has beeffeer or
auditor of the Company or a related body corporate:

. indemnified or made any relevant agreement foermaifying against a liability incurred as an office
including costs and expenses in successfully défgrdgal proceedings; or
. paid or agreed to pay a premium in respect ofréract insuring against a liability incurred asadficer for

the costs or expenses to defend legal proceedings.

PROCEEDINGS ON BEHALF OF THE COMPANY

No person has applied for leave of Court to brimgcpedings on behalf of the Company or interveneny
proceedings to which the Company is a party forghgose of taking responsibility on behalf of thempany for
all or any part of those proceedings.

The Company was not a party to any such proceedingsg the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In recognising the need for the highest standafd®iporate behaviour and accountability, the doescof Gladiator
Resources Limited support and have substantialherd to the best practice recommendations sehdyASX
Corporate Governance Council. The Company’s catpaovernance statement is contained in the anepait.
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AUDITOR'S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
A copy of the Auditor's Independence Declarationreguired under Section 307C of the Corporations 2001 is
included within this financial report.

NON-AUDIT SERVICES

Any non-audit service that may have been providgdthe entity’s auditor, RSM Bird Cameron Partneiss,
shown at Note 13. The directors are satisfied tha provision of non-audit services is compatiblith the
general standard of independence for auditors iegpp@y the Corporations Act. The nature and scdpsach type
of non-audit service provided means that auditdependence was not compromised.

Dated at Perth this §Oiay of September, 2013

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the badudirectors
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Consolidated

2013 2012

Note $ $
Revenue 2 348,758 489,049
Net foreign exchanges gains / (losses) 3(b) 948,600 (86,099)
Depreciation 3(a) (33,065) (24,768)
Administration expenses 3(c) (67,584) (138,544)
Audit and tax remuneration 3(c) (41,700) (111,276)
Company secretarial fees 3(c) (90,350) (111,760)
Consulting fees 3(c) (266,668) (180,400)
Directors’ benefits expense 3(c) (372,111) (207,457)
Exploration expenditure (written off) 3(c) - (298)
Fees and permits 3(c) (130,355) (80,326)
Insurance 3(c) (26,335) (20,082)
Legal costs 3(c) (27,159) (26,595)
Rent and outgoings 3(c) (46,113) (26,858)
Share registry maintenance fees 3(c) (34,117) (45,118)
Taxes and licenses 3(c) (20,069) (129,322)
Travel and accommodation 3(c) (23,894) (65,346)
Unrealised loss of financial assets 3(c) (136,792) -
Other expenses 3(c) (122,832) (119,018)
Loss before income tax (141,786) (884,218)
Income tax 4 - -
Loss for the year (141,786) (884,218)
Other comprehensive income
Items that may be reclassified subsequently tatprof
loss
Exchange differences on translation of foreign apens (62,527) 53,191
Total comprehensive loss for the year (204,313) (831,027)
Loss attributable to:
Members of the parent entity (204,313) (831,027)
Basic and diluted loss per share (cents per share) 16 (0.06) (0.63)

The above statement of comprehensive income
should be read in conjunction with the accompanyioigs.
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE2013
2013 2012
Note $ $
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 792,203 3,545,811
Trade and other receivables 6 884,024 1,301,322
Total Current Assets 1,676,227 4,847,133
Non Current Assets
Other financial assets 7 120,659 4,094
Plant and equipment 8 74,380 97,527
Mineral exploration and evaluation expenditure 9 14,190,261 11,113,800
Total Non Current Assets 14,385,300 11,215,421
Total Assets 16,061,527 16,062,554
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 10 749,968 827,644
Total Liabilities 749,968 827,644
Net Assets 15,311,559 15,234,910
Equity
Issued capital 11 18,005,194 18,007,112
Reserves 12 3,026,711 2,806,358
Accumulated losses (5,720,346) (5,578,560)
Total Equity 15,311,559 15,234,910

The above statement of financial position
should be read in conjunction with the accompanyioigs.
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Balance at 01/07/2011

Loss for the year
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Share Foreign
Issued Based Currency Accumulated
Capital Payments Translation Losses
$ Reserve  Reserve $

$ $

Total
$

Transactions with owners recorded

directly into equity

Shares issued during the year

Fair value of options issued during the year -

Fair value of performance rights issued

during the year
Transaction costs

Balance at 30/06/2012

Balance at 01/07/2012

Loss for the year

Transactions with owners recorded

directly into equity

Fair value of performance rights issued

during the year

Transaction costs

12,443,002 1,976,364 54,436 (4,694,342) 9,779,460

- - - (884,218) (884,218)

Other comprehensive income - - 53,191 53,191
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - 53,191 (884,218) (831,027)
6,688,501 - - 6,688,501

531,110 - - 531,110

- 191,257 - - 191,257

(1,124,391) - - -(1,124,391)

18,007,112 2,698,731 107,627 (5,578,560) 15,234,910

18,007,112 2,698,731 107,627 (5,578,560) 15,234,910

- - - (141,786) (141,786)

Other comprehensive income - - (62,527) (62,527)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (62,527) (141,786) (204,313)
- 282880 - 282,880

(1,918) - - (1,918)

18,005,194 2,981,611 45,100 (5,720,346) 15,311,559

Balance at 30/06/2013

The above statement of changes in equity
should be read in conjunction with the accompanyioigs.
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Note
Loss for the year
Depreciation 8
Equity settled share based payments
Exploration expenditure written off/(recouped)
(Gain)/Loss on disposal of plant and equipment
Foreign exchange movements
Movement in Net Market Value - Unrealised Loss
Movements in assets and liabilities:
Receivables
Payables
Net Cash Flows Used in Operating Activities
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Payments for exploration expenditure
Payment for plant and equipment 8
Disposals of plant and equipment 8
Disposalsf other assets
Other
Net Cash Flows Used in Investing Activities
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from issue of shares and options
Costs associated with share and option issues
Net Cash Flows Used in / Provided by Financing Adctities
Net (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents held
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning ofrthedial year
Effect of exchange rate change on cash holdings
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the finamatiyear 5
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Consolidated

2013 2012
$ $
(141,786)  (884,218)
33,065 24,768
220,353 210,967
- 298
(267,500) 3,126
(948,600) 86,099
136,792 -
417,298  (646,908)
(77,676) 54,848
(628,054)  (1,151,020)
(3,076,384) (5,782,710)
(10,979) (44,483)
1,061
14,608 -
- 12,461
(3,071,694) (5,814,732)
- 6,688,501
(2,460)  (612,991)
(2,460) 6,075,510
(3,702,208)  (890,242)
3,545,811 4,522,152
948,600 (86,099)
792,203 3,545,811
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The above statement of cash flows
should be read in conjunction with the accompanyioigs.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S

Separate financial statements for Gladiator Ressutémited as the parent entity are no longer prteskas a
consequence of changes to the Corporations Act,200&ever required financial information for Glatia
Resources Limited as the parent entity is includedote 24.

The significant policies, which have been adopiethé preparation of this financial report, are:

Basis of Preparation

The financial report is a general purpose finan@gbrt which has been prepared in accordance Aviltralian
Accounting Standards (including the Australian Aguiing Interpretations) and the Corporations AcO20
Gladiator Resources Limited is a for-profit entfor financial reporting purposes under Australiaccéunting
Standards.

The financial report was authorised for issue lgyBloard on September 30, 2013.

Except for cash flow information, the financial ogphas been prepared on an accruals basis araséd obn
historical costs. Cost is based on the fair vabfdhe consideration given in exchange for assets.

This report has been prepared on the going coneasis, which contemplates the continuity of norimaginess
activity and the realisation of assets and settfgrogliabilities in the normal course of business.

As disclosed in the financial statements, the caom@and consolidated entity incurred losses afterfda the year
ended 30 June 2013 of $904,539 and $141,786 résggcihe consolidated entity also had net cadfiaws from
operating activities of $628,054 and $3,071,69#fiovesting activities for the year ended 30 JuBE32

These factors indicate significant uncertainty asvhether the company and consolidated entity ealtinue as
going concerns and therefore whether they williseaheir assets and extinguish their liabilitieshe normal course
of business and at the amounts stated in the fialameport.

The Directors believe that it is reasonably forabée that the company and consolidated entity ealitinue as

going concerns and that it is appropriate to adoptgoing concern basis in the preparation of ih@ntial report
after consideration of the following factors:

The ability to issue additional shares undeGbgporation Act 20010 raise further working capital; and
The consolidated entity has the ability to saen its operations in order to curtail expendifurethe
event capital raisings are delayed or insufficeagh is available to meet projected expenditure.

Accordingly, the Directors believe that the company consolidated entity will be able to contingegaing
concerns and that it is appropriate to adopt theggooncern basis in the preparation of the finalneport.

The financial report does not include any adjustsieglating to the amounts or classification obreed assets or
liabilities that might be necessary if the companyg consolidated entity do not continue as goingems.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S (Cont.)
@) Statement of Compliance

The financial report complies with Australian Acating Standards, which include Australian equiveleto
International Financial Reporting Standards (AIFREpmpliance with AIFRS ensures that the finansiatements
and notes comply with International Financial RépgrStandards.

(b) Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporageassets and liabilities of the entities conttblly Gladiator
Resources Limited (parent entity) as at 30 June3 201 the results of the controlled entities far tkear then
ended. The effects of all transactions between igiladd Resources Limited and its controlled entitere
eliminated in full.

Where control of an entity is obtained during afinial year, its results are included in the cddatéd statement
of comprehensive income from the date on whichrobsommences. Where control of an entity ceasengl a
financial year, its results are included for thet péthe year for which control exists.

(© Income Tax

The charge for current income tax is based on tbft fior the year adjusted for any non-assessabMdisallowed
items. It is calculated using the rates that lmeen enacted or are substantively enacted atphoetireg date.

Deferred tax is accounted for using the balancetsiability method in respect of temporary diffeces arising
between the tax base of assets and liabilitiestlagid carrying amounts in the financial statemento deferred
income tax will be recognised from the gilitrecognition of an asset or liability, kiting a business
combination, where there is no effect on accountingixable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates thateapected to apply to the period when the assetaiésed or
liability is settled. Deferred tax is creditedtme statement of comprehensive income except wiheetates to
items that may be credited directly to equity, iniehh case the deferred tax is adjusted directlynasgyaquity.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to ttemtethat it is probable that future profit will tevailable
against which deductible temporary differenceshantilised.

The amount of benefits brought to account or whiety be realised in the future is based on the gstsmmthat
no adverse change will occur in income taxatiorislaion and the anticipation that the Company d#lrive
sufficient future assessable income to enable #weefit to be realised and comply with the condgiaof
deductibility imposed by the law.

(d) Plant and Equipment

Each class of plant and equipment is carried at oodair value less, where applicable, any accuaieul
depreciation and impairment losses.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S (Cont.)
(d) Plant and Equipment(continued)

Plant and equipment
Plant and equipment is measured on the cost lEssgiepreciation and impairment losses.

The carrying amount of plant and equipment is regitk annually by directors to ensure it is not icess of the
recoverable amount from these assets. The reddeesaount is assessed on the basis of the expeetezash
flows that will be received from the assets emplegimand subsequent disposal. The expected netfloash
have been discounted to their present values ermé&ting recoverable amounts.

Depreciation

The depreciable amount of all fixed assets is deged on a diminishing value method or a straligte method
commencing from the time the asset is held readyde.

The depreciation rates used for each class of dejle assets are:

Plant and equipment 2.5 -100%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives arewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reampdate and
where adjusted, shall be accounted for as a charggeounting estimate. Where depreciation ratenaihod are
changed, the net written down value of the asse¢seciated from the date of the change in acocoslwaith the

new depreciation rate or method.

An asset’'s carrying amount is written down immegliato its recoverable amount if the asset’s cagyamount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined bgasorg proceeds with the carrying amount. Thesesgand
losses are included in the statement of compreveistome.

(e) Exploration and Development Expenditure

Exploration, evaluation and development expenditacarred is accumulated in respect of each idabié area
of interest. These costs are only carried forwarthe extent that they are expected to be recotlpedgh the
successful development of the area or where de8vih the area have not yet reached a stage #ratitp

reasonable assessment of the existence of ecodlym@averable reserves.

Accumulated costs in relation to an abandoned areavritten off in full against profit in the year which the
decision to abandon the area is made.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S (Cont.)

(e) Exploration and Development Expenditurécontinued)

When production commences, the accumulated costhdaelevant area of interest are amortised theestife of
the area according to the rate of depletion oettenomically recoverable reserves.

A regular review is undertaken of each area ofr@sieto determine the appropriateness of contintongarry
forward costs in relation to that area of interest.

Costs of site restoration are provided over the &f the facility from when exploration commencesl are
included in the costs of that stage. Site restoratosts include the dismantling and removal ofiing plant,
equipment and building structures, waste removal, rehabilitation of the site in accordance witaudes of the
mining permits. Such costs have been determinied) estimates of future costs, current legal resnénts and
technology on an undiscounted basis.

Any changes in the estimates for the costs areuated on a prospective basis. In determining tescof site
restoration, there is uncertainty regarding theimeatand extent of the restoration due to commueiyectations
and future legislation. Accordingly, the costs éidheen determined on the basis that the restoratibrbe
completed within one year of abandoning the site.

() Leases

Leases of fixed assets where substantially altifks and benefits incidental to the ownershiphef asset, but not
the legal ownership, are classified as financeeleasll other leases are classified as operatiaggle

Finance leases are capitalised by recording art asskea liability at the lower of the amounts eqtaathe fair
value of the leased property of the present valuéhe minimum lease payments, including any guaeoht
residual values. Lease payments are allocatedebetthe reduction of the lease liability and theséeinterest
expense for the period.

Lease payments for operating leases, where suiaditarall the risks and benefits remain with theder, are
charged as expenses in the periods in which treeinaurred.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S (Cont.)

(9) Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are grised when the entity becomes a party to the aotuial
provisions to the instrument. For financial assiits, is equivalent to the date that the companyruods itself to
either the purchase or sale of the asset (ie ttatieaccounting is adopted).

Financial instruments are initially measured at failue plus transaction costs, except where tegument is
classified “at fair value through profit or lossfy which case transaction costs are expensed fit proloss
immediately.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial instruments are subsequently measurératalue, amortised cost using the effective regé method,
or cost.

Amortised cost is calculated as the amount at wthiehfinancial asset or financial liability is measd at initial
recognition less principal repayments and any reduoicfor impairment, and adjusted for any cumulativ
amortisation of the difference between that iniielount and the maturity amount calculated usimegefifiective
interest method.

The effective interest method is used to allocaterést income or interest expense over the relgenod and is
equivalent to the rate that discounts estimategréutash payments or receipts (including feesséetion costs
and other premiums or discounts) over the expdifte¢br when this cannot be reliably predicteds trontractual
term) of the financial instrument to the net cargyamount of the financial asset or financial liépi Revisions to
expected future net cash flows will necessitateadjustment to the carrying amount with a consedalent
recognition of an income or expense item in prafiloss.

Fair value is determined based on current bid prioeall quoted investments. Valuation technigaesapplied to
determine the fair value for all unlisted secusitisncluding recent arm’s length transactions, reafee to similar
instruments and option pricing models.

The Group does not designate any interests in diabgis, associates or joint venture entities asgosubject to
the requirements of Accounting Standards spedifiegdplicable to financial instruments.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets are classified at “fair valueulgtoprofit or loss” when they are held for tradingthe purpose of
short-term profit taking, derivatives not held ferdging purposes, or when they are designatedcags@avoid an
accounting mismatch or to enable performance etialuavhere a Group of financial assets is managddly
management personnel on a fair value basis in danoe with a documented risk management or invegtme
strategy. Such assets are subsequently measuesdwatiue with changes in carrying amount beinguded in
profit or loss.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S (Cont.)

(9) Financial Instruments (cont.)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative finarasaéts with fixed or determinable payments thahatguoted
in an active market and are subsequently meastuadatised cost. Gains or losses are recognispubiit or
loss through the amortisation process and whefirthecial asset is derecognised.

Financial liabilities
Non-derivative financial liabilities other than éincial guarantees are subsequently measured disedarost.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or lossuih the amortisation process and when the fisdhiability is
derecognised.

(h) Impairment of Assets

At each reporting date, the Company reviews theyirey values of its tangible and intangible assetdetermine
whether there is any indication that those ass®ie been impaired. If such an indication exists, recoverable
amount of the asset, being the higher of the astat’' value less costs to sell and value in isepmpared to the
asset’s carrying value. Any excess of the assat'sying value over its recoverable amount is expdro the
statement of comprehensive income.

Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverashount of an individual asset, the Company estisnthe
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unitiiciwthe asset belongs.

0] Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hapdsiteheld at call with banks, other short-terighhi liquid
investments with original maturities of three manth less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S (Cont.)

()] Trade and Other Receivables

Trade receivables are initially recognised at failue and subsequently measured at amortised sogj the
effective interest method, less any provision fopairment. Trade receivables are generally duesdtttement
within 30 days.

Collectability of trade receivables is reviewed amongoing basis. Debts which are known to be lieutable
are written off by reducing the carrying amounedtty. A provision for impairment of trade recdies is raised
when there is objective evidence that the cons@diantity will not be able to collect all amoudise according
to the original terms of the receivables. Sigaifitfinancial difficulties of the debtor, probabjlithat the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisationdadefault or delinquency in payments (more thandé&gs
overdue) are considered indicators that the tradeivable may be impaired. The amount of the impemt
allowance is the difference between the assetiyiogr amount and the present value of estimategrdutash
flows, discounted at the original effective intereste. Cash flows relating to short-term receleatare not
discounted if the effect of discounting is immaaéri

(k)  Trade and Other Payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods amdices provided to the consolidated entity prothe end of
the financial year and which are unpaid. Due ®rtehort-term nature they are measured at amdrtisst and
are not discounted. The amounts are unsecuredrangually paid within 30 days of recognition.

)] Revenue

Interest revenue is recognised on a proportionalsbiaking into account the interest rates applécab the
financial assets.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goodbssarvice tax (GST).
(m) Goods and Services Tax (GST) and Valdalded Tax (VAT)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognisedthetashount of GST, except where the amount of GIST
VAT incurred is not recoverable from the Australi@iaxation Office (ATO) or the Uruguay General Tax
Direction ((Direccion Nacional Impositiv— DGI) as approprial

Receivables and payables are stated inclusiveeofithount of GST or VAT receivable or payable. Tké n
amount of GST or VAT recoverable from, or payalolethe ATO or DGI is included with other receivabla
payables in the statemenifinancial positior

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. TheoG8AT components of cash flows arising from invegtor
financing activities, which are recoverable frompawable to the ATO or DGI, are presented as oipgratish
flows included in receipts from customers or paymentufipliers
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S (Cont.)

(n) Losses per share

0] Basic Loss per share

Basic loss per share is determined by dividing dperating loss after income tax attributable to ivers of
Gladiator Resources Limited by the weighted averagaber of ordinary shares outstanding during thantial
year.

(i) Diluted Loss per Share

Diluted loss per share adjusts the amounts usé#tkidetermination of basic loss per share by takit@account
unpaid amounts on ordinary shares and any reduatiearnings per share that will probably arisenfrthe
exercise of options outstanding during the finangar.

(0) Issued Capital
Issued and paid up capital is recognised at thevddiie of the consideration received by the Corgpan

Any transaction costs arising on the issue of @irshares are recognised directly in equity asdagation of the
share proceeds received.

(p) Share Based Payments

The fair value at grant date is independently deiteed using a either a Binomial Option Valuationtimeglology
or a Black-Scholes option pricing model that takee account the exercise price, the term of thtoap the
vesting and performance criteria, the impact ofithh, the non-tradable nature of the option, thare price at
grant date and expected price volatility of the enhdng share, the expected dividend yield and fisk interest
rate for the term of the option.

The fair value of the options granted excluded ithpact of any non-market vesting condition. Noarket
vesting conditions are included in assumptaimout the number of options that are exuedb become
exercisable. The employee benefit expense recayeaeh period takes into account the most recéintas.

The market value of shares issued to employeeadorash consideration under the employee sharenscihe

recognised as an employee benefits expense withrasponding increase in equity when the emplobeesme
entitled to the shares.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S (Cont.)

(q) Foreign Currency Translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of eatthe Company’s entities are measured using thesiocy of
the primary economic environment in which the gntiperates (‘the functional currency’). The fuootl and
presentation currency of Gladiator Resources Linite Australian dollars. The functional currencigfsthe
foreign subsidiaries are US dollars and PESO.

(il) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated mdftinctional currency using the exchange rategaiiieg at the

dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gaiddosses resulting from the settlement of suastictions and
from the translation at year-end exchangesraif monetary assets and liabilities denatach in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of celmeisive income.

(iii) Group entities

The results and financial position of all the Compa entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functionarency different from the presentation currencey @manslated
into the presentation currency as follows:

. assets and liabilities for each statement of firerposition presented are translated at the mipsite at
the reporting date;

. income and expenses for each statement of commigbeincome are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable approximatfothe rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
which case income and expenses are translated datbs of the transactions); and

. all resulting exchange differences are recogrésea separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising fthentranslation of any net investment in foreignitees are
taken to foreign currency translation reserve.

When a foreign operation is sold or any borrowifagming part of the net investment are repaid, @prtionate
share of such exchange differences are recogmistteistatement of comprehensive income, as patteogain
or loss on sale where applicable.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S (Cont.)

n Critical accounting estimates and judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluatetl sa@e based on historical experience and otheorfac
including expectations of future events that aleled to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The following are the critical judgments and estesahat the Directors have made in the proceapplying the
Company’'s accounting policies and that have thetmanificant effect on the amounts recognised ha t
financial statements.

Share based payment transactions

The Company measures the cost of equity-settledddions with employees by reference to the falines of the
equity instruments at the date at which they aamtgd.

Capitalised exploration and evaluation expenditure

The future recoverability of capitalised exploratiand evaluation expenditure is dependent on a eurob
factors, including whether the Company decidescpaait the related lease itself or, if not, whetltesuccessfully
recovers the related exploration and evaluatioatdksough sale.

Factors which could impact the future recoverabititclude the level of proved and probable mineeslerves,
future technological changes which could impactdbst of mining, future legal changes (includingmes to
environmental restoration obligations) and charnge®mmodity prices.

To the extent that capitalised exploration and watidn expenditure is determined not to be recdlera the
future, this will reduce profits and net assetthimperiod in which this determination is made.

In addition, exploration and evaluation expenditisreapitalised if activities in the area of int@rédave not yet
reached a stage which permits a reasonable assessintiee existence or otherwise of economicalyoxerable
reserves. To the extent that it is determinechéfuture that this capitalised expenditure shdngdwritten off,

this will reduce profits and net assets in thequem which this determination is made.

(s) New, revised or amending Accounting Stdards and Interpretations adopted

The consolidated entity has adopted all of the mewised or amending Accounting Standards and gdreations
issued by the Australian Accounting Standards Bdhed are mandatory for the current reporting meridhe
adoption of these Accounting Standards and Intepoas did not have any significant impact on fimancial
performance or position of the consolidated entity.

Any new, revised or amending Accounting Standamdmiterpretations that are not yet mandatory hastebeen
early adopted.
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NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIE S (Cont.)

(s) New, revised or amending Accounting Stdards and Interpretations adopted (cont.)
New Accounting Standards and Interpretations not yemandatory or early adopted

Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretatitired have recently been issued or amended buhatreet
mandatory, have not been early adopted by the tidased entity for the annual reporting period eh@® June
2013. The consolidated entity’'s assessment of itiygact of these new or amended Accounting Standamds
Interpretations, most relevant to the consolidatetity, are set out below.

AASB 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

This standard is applicable to annual reportingogerbeginning on or after 1 January 2013. Thedstahhas a new
definition of ‘control'. Control exists when theogting entity is exposed, or has the rights, toalde returns from

its involvement with another entity and has theitgltio affect those returns through its ‘powerépthat other entity.
A reporting entity has power when it has rightd thige it the current ability to direct the acties that significantly

affect the investee’s returns. The consolidatedyentll not only have to consider its holdings arights but also the
holdings and rights of other shareholders in otdatetermine whether it has the necessary powesdiosolidation

purposes. The adoption of this standard from 1 2043 may have an impact where the consolidatety érds a

holding of less than 50% in an entity, has de fadtutrol, and is not currently consolidating thatity.

AASB 2011-4 Amendments to Australian Accountingd&tas to Remove Individual Key Management Perdonne
Disclosure Requirement

These amendments are applicable to annual repgaéingds beginning on or after 1 July 2013, withyeadoption

not permitted. They amend AASB 124 'Related ParigclDsures’ by removing the disclosure requireméoits
individual key management personnel (KMP"). Thepidn of these amendments from 1 July 2014 witioge the
duplication of information relating to individual\&P in the notes to the financial statements andlitextors report.
As the aggregate disclosures are still requiredA$B 124 and during the transitional period theuiegments may
be included in the Corporations Act or other legish, it is expected that the amendments willlreote a material
impact on the consolidated entity.
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NOTE 2: REVENUE

Revenue

Interest earned

Rent (write-off) / received

Research and development tax offset
Sale of Tenement Assets

NOTE 3: EXPENSES AND LOSSES/(GAINS)

(a) Expenses
Depreciation of non-current assets
- Plant and equipment

(b) Net foreign currency (gains) / losses

(c) Significant Items

Loss before income tax includes the following exgeen
whose disclosure is relevant in explaining theritial
performance for the year:

Administration expenses

Audit and tax remuneration
Company secretarial costs
Consulting fees

Directors’ benefits expense
Exploration expenditure written off
Fees and permits

Insurance

Legal costs

Rent and outgoings

Share registry maintenance fees
Taxes and licenses

Travel and accommodation
Unrealised loss of financial assets
Other expenses
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Consolidated

2013 2012
$ $
99,802 116,760
(18,544) 18,544
- 353,745
267,500 -
348,758 489,049

Consolidated

2013 2012
$ $
33,065 24,768
(948,600) 86,099
67,584 138,544
41,700 111,276
90,350 111,760
266,668 180,400
372,111 207,457
- 298
130,355 80,326
26,335 20,082
27,159 26,595
46,113 26,858
34,117 45,118
20,069 129,322
23,894 65,346
136,792 -
122,832 119,018
1,406,079 1,262,400




AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIE

NOTE 4: INCOME TAX
No income tax is payable by the Company as it imghia loss for tax purposes for the year and hadaale

recoupable income tax losses at balance date. aggpeegate amount of income tax attributable tofitencial
year differs from the amount calculated on the afeg loss. The differences are calculated asvd|

Consolidated

2013 2012
$ $

Loss before income tax (141,786) (884,218)
Income tax calculated at 30% (42,536) (265,265)
Non-allowable expenditure (35,964) 65,780
Tax asset not recognised 78,500 199,485
Income tax attributable to operating loss - -
The directors estmate that the pctential deferre«tax asset at 30% arising from
tax losses not brought to account at reporting idepproximately: 1,042,958 1,480,075

Deferred income tax assets have not been recogassités not probable that future
taxable income will be available against whichtdpelosses can be utilised.

Consolidated

2013 2012
$ $
NOTE 5: CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash at bank 542,203 345,811
Term deposits 250,000 3,200,000

792,203 3,545,811

NOTE 6: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

CURRENT

Trade debtors - 20,399
Sundry debtors - 353,745
GST and VAT refundable 828,806 821,356
Prepayments 47,343 33,387
Accrued income 2,411 38,091
Guarantees 5,464 34,344

884,024 1,301,322

Current receivables with a short duration are m&talinted and the carrying values are assumedpi@x@émate
the fair value.
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NOTE 6: TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

Credit Risk

The maximum exposure to credit risk at reportingeds the carrying amount (net of provision of dibulbdebts)
of those assets as disclosed in the statemennafdial position and notes to the financial statéme The
Company has adopted a policy of only dealing wittditworthy counterparties and obtaining sufficieallateral
where appropriate, as a means of mitigating theafdinancial loss from defaults. The Companypesure and
the credit ratings of its counterparties apmtinuously monitored and the aggregate evadfi transactions

concluded are spread amongst approved counterpartie

Consolidated

2013 2012
$ $

NOTE 7: OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS
Long term investments — fair value 120,659 4,094
Long term investments relate to shares obtainenligr sale of a tenement during
the year.
NOTE 8: PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Plant and equipment at cost 149,822 135,534
Less: accumulated depreciation (75,442) (38,007)
Total plant and equipment 74,380 97,527
Reconciliation of the carrying amount for plant aggiipment is set out below:
Carrying amount at beginning of year 97,527 80,938
Additions 10,979 44,483
Disposals (1,061) (3,126)
Depreciation expense (33,065) (24,768)
Carrying amount at end of year 74,380 97,527
NOTE 9: MINERAL EXPLORATION AND EVALUATION
EXPENDITURE
Balance at beginning of year 11,113,800 5,278,197
Exploration expenditure incurred during year 3,076,461 5,835,901
Expenditure written off - (298)
Balance at end of year 14,190,261 11,113,800

-50-



AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIE

Consolidated

2013 2012
$ $
NOTE 10: TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trade creditors and accrued expenses 749,968 827,644
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paitlture for goods and services received,
whether or not billed to the entity. Creditors peed and cleared in a 30 day cycle. The
notional amount is deemed to reflect the fair value
NOTE 11: ISSUED CAPITAL
(a) Issued Capital
232,985,222 Ordinary shares fully paid 18,005,194 18,007,112
(2012: 225,485,222 )
(b) Movements in ordinary share capital of the Compny during the year were as follows:
Date Details No. of $
Shares
01/07/2012 Opening balance 225,485,222 18,007,112
07/11/2012 Conversion of performance shares 7,500,000 -
Less: costs associated with issue of shares - (1,918)
30/06/2013 Closing balance 232,985,222 18,005,194

(© Capital Risk Management

When managing capital, management’s objective snure the Company continues as a going concenelas
as to maintain optimal returns to shareholders lagnkfits for other stakeholders. Management ailss &
maintain a capital structure that ensures the lbeest of capital available to the Company.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital struefuhe Company may adjust the amount of dividerald f»
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issueshares, enter into joint ventures or selltasse

The Company does not have a defined share buyglack

No dividends were paid in 2013 and no dividendseapected to be paid in 2014.
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NOTE 11: CONTRIBUTED EQUITY (continued)
(©) Capital Risk Management(continued)

There is no current intention to incur debt fundamgbehalf of the Company as on-going exploratiqpeaditure
will be funded via cash reserves, equity or joiemtures with other companies.

The Company is not subject to any externally imgasapital requirements.
Consolidated

2013 2012
NOTE 12: RESERVES $ $
(&) Composition
Share based payments reserve 2,981,611 2,698,731
Foreign currency translation reserve 45,100 107,627

3,026,711 2,806,358

Number of , . .
Date Details Performance Number of options E;;ei(r:c;se Eég[[rey
Rights Listed Unlisted

01/07/2012 Opening balance 8,300,00037,996,956 30,892,389
06/07/2012 Unlisted options expired - + (1,500,000) 0.35 06/07/2012

Exercise of performance -
07/11/2012 rights (7,500,000) 1 - -
31/12/2012 Unlisted options expired - 1(14,017,389) 0.40 31/12/2012
31/12/2012 Unlisted options expired (750,000) 0.30 31/12/2012
21/02/2013

Performance rights lapsed (800,000) 1 - -
30/06/2013 Closing Balance - 137,996,956 14,625,000
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NOTE 13: REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

Amounts paid or due and payable to the auditoti@fCompany for:

Audit and review services

- RSM Bird Cameron Partners 32,500 30,400

Tax compliance services

- RSM Bird Cameron 9,200 26,558
41,700 56,958

NOTE 14: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL
This note is to be read in conjunction with the Raeration Report, which is included in the Direstdreport.

The directors of the Company are:

Daniel Bruno Non-Executive

Oscar Ledn Non-Executifdppointed on 22 March 2013)
Malcolm Draffin Non-Executive - (Apjmted on 22 March 2013)
Juan Jorge Non-Execuiy&ppointed on 7 May 2013)
Andrew Draffin Non-Executive - (Apinted on 21 May 2013)
Alec Pismiris Non-ExecutiveResigned on 22 March 2013)
David Argyle Non-ExecutiveRgsigned on 22 March 2013)
John Palermo Executive - (Besd on 30 November 2012)
Leonard Dean Chairman - (Resiban 17 December 2012)
Mark Gordon Non-Executive efigned on 21 May 2013)
Stuart John Hall Non-ExecutiviRegigned on 7 December 2012)

Robert Timothy Adams  Executive - (Resigneddviay 2013)

There are no other specified executives in positiorontrol or exercising management authority.

Remuneration of Key Management Personnel
Refer to Remuneration Report for details of rematien paid to key management personnel.

The totals of remuneration paid to key managemerggnnel of the Company during the year are asvist!

$ $
Short term employee benefits 725,282 705,437
Post-employment benefits 13,625 13,625
Equity based payments 252,744 207,457
Other benefits - 49,924

991,651 976,443
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NOTE 14: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (Cont.)

Share Holdings (2013)

Balance Received No. of Options/ Net Other Balance
1 July 2012 Remuneration PerformanceRights Change 30 June2013
(No. of Shares) (No. of Shares) Exercised (No. ofShares)  (No. of Shares)
Director
D Bruno 390,909 -- -- 500,000 890,909
Total 390,909 - -- 500,000 890,909
Share Holdings (2012)
Balance Received No. of Options/ Net Other Balance
1 July 2011 Remuneration PerformanceRights Change 30 June2012
(No. of Shares) (No. of Shares) Exercised (No. of Shares)  (No. of Shares)
Director
L Dean - - 300,000 245,455 545,455
R T Adams 2,008,889 - 1,330,000 - 3,338,889
J Palermo 4,415,000 6,313,333 (245,375) 10,482,958
S J Hall -- -- 300,000 245,455 545,455
D Bruno 215,000 - - 175,909 390,909
Total 6,638,889 - 8,243,333 421,444 15,303,666
Options Holdings (2013)
Balance Granted as No. of Net Change Balance Total Vested Total
01/07/2012 Remuneration Options Other (No. of 30/06/2013 30/06/2013 Exercisable
(No. of (No. of Exercised (No. of (No. of (No. of
Options) Options) Options) Options) Options) Options)
Director
D Bruno 1,783,409 -- 1,607,500 107,500 107,500 107,500
Total 1,783,409 -- 1,607,500 107,500 107,500 107,500
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NOTE 14: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (Cont.)

Options Holdings (2012)

Balance Granted as No. of Net Change Balance Total Vested Total
01/07/2011 Remuneration Options Other (No. of 30/06/2012 30/06/2012 Exercisable
(No. of (No. of Exercised (No. of (No. of (No. of
Options) Options) Options) Options) Options) Options)
Director
L Dean -- -- -- 245,455 245,455 245,455 245,455
R T Adams 5,830,000 - (1,330,000) - 4,500,000 4,500,000 4,500,000
J Palermo 6,330,000 -- (6,313,333) 11,731,291 11,747,958 11,747,958 11,747,958
S J Hall -- -- -- 245,455 245,455 245,455 245,455
D Bruno 107,500 1,500,000 -- 175,909 1,783,409 1,783,409 1,783,409
Total 12,267,500 1,500,000 (7,643,333) 12,398,110 18,522,277 18,522,277 18,522,277
Performance Rights Holdings (2013)
Balance Granted as No. of Net Balance Total Vested Total
01/07/2012 Remuneration Perf. Rights Change Other 30/06/2013 30/06/2013 Exerciseble
(No. of (No. of Exer cisec (No. of (No. of (No. of (No. of
Performance Performance Performance Performance Performance Performance
Rights) Rights) Rights) Rights) Rights) Rights)
Director
L Dean - 900,000 (500,000) Qq400) - - -
R T Adams - 3,000,000 (3,000,000) - - - -
J Palermo - 3,000,000 (3,000,000) - - - -
S J Hall - 900,000 (500,000) (4000 - - -
D Bruno - 500,000 (500,000) - - - -
Total - 8,300,000 (7,500,000) (800,000) - - -
Performance Rights Holdings (2012)
Balance Granted as No. of Net Balance Total Vested Total
01/07/2011 Remuneration Perf. Rights Change Other 30/06/2012 30/06/201z Exerciseble
(No. of (No. of Exercisec (No. of (No. of (No. of (No. of
Performance Performance Performance Performance Performance Performance
Rights) Rights) Rights) Rights) Rights) Rights)
Director
L Dean -- 1,200,000 (300,000) -- 900,000 - -
R T Adams -- 3,000,000 -- -- 3,000,000 - -
J Palermo -- 3,000,000 -- -- 3,000,000 - -
S J Hall -- 1,200,000 (300,000) -- 900,000 - -
D Bruno -- 500,000 -- -- 500,000 - -
Total -- 8,900,000 (600,000) -- 8,300,000 - -
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NOTE 14: KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL (Cont.)

Service Agreements

AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIE

Refer to the Remuneration Report for details ofiseragreements with key management personnel.

Transactions with Key Management Personnel

Aggregate amounts of each type of transaction eiréctors other than directors fees are as follows:

Consultancy expenses reimbursed — D Bruno
Consultancy expenses reimbursed — R T Adams
Company secretarial and professional fees —

Prime Corporate management Pty Ltd and J P Catp®ty Ltd (J Palermo)

Sub-underwriting fees — J Palermo

Company secretarial and finance function fees -

Franks & Associates Pty Ltd (A Bursill)

NOTE 15: CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Consolidated

2013 2012
$ $
- 8,223
10,000 37,478
245,157 117,842
- 42,000
73,155 -

The consolidated financial statements include thantial statements of Gladiator Resources Liméed its

subsidiaries listed in the following table.

Brightflow Investments Pty Ltd
Ecochar Pty Ltd

lon Resources Pty Ltd

Ferrous Resources Pty Ltd
Ferrominas Sociedad Anonima
Floniler Sociedad Anonima
Joutes Sociedad Anonima
Hamfu Sociedad Anonima
Kyntu Sociedad Anonima
Rolben Sociedad Anonima

Book Value of Shares held

Country %
of Equity Interest by Parent Entity
Incorporation 2013 2012 2013 2012
% % $ $
Australia 100% 100% - -
Australia 100% 100% 001 100
Australia 100% 100% 100 100
Australia 100% 100% - -
Uruguay 100% 100% 12,155 12,155
Uruguay 100% 100% - -
Uruguay 100% 100% 1,928 1,928
Uruguay 100% 100% 1,928 1,928
Uruguay 100% 100% 1,928 1,928
Uruguay 100% 100% 2,166 2,166
20,305 20,305
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NOTE 16: LOSS PER SHARE

The following reflects the income and data usetthéncalculations of basic and diluted loss pereshar

Consolidated

2013 2012
$ $
Loss for the year (141,786) (884,218)
Loss used in calculating basic and diluted lossshare (141,786) (884,218)

No. of shares No. of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares usedl@ulating
basic and diluted loss per share: 230,300,796 139,897,995

NOTE 17: COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

Tenement Expenditure Commitments

In order to maintain current rights of tenure toimg tenements, the Company will be required tdayun the
year ended 30 June 2013 amounts of $838,000 irecesh minimum tenement expenditure requirements an
lease rentals. These non-cancellable obligatiomsatr provided for in the financial statements arelpayable as

follows:

2013 2012
$ $
Not later than one year 838,000 838,000
Later than one year but not later than 2 years 030358 838,000
Later than 2 years but not later than 5 years 1,676,000 2,514,000

3,352,000 4,190,000

NOTE 18: CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Gladiator Resources Limited has no known mategatingent liabilities at the end of the financiaky.
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NOTE 19: SEGMENT INFORMATION

Business Segments

The directors have considered the requirementsA&B\8 — Operating Segments and the internal refiwatsare reviewed by the chief operating decisiaker (the Board) in
allocating resources and have concluded duringebe Gladiator Resources Limited operated in timeral exploration industry within the geographisagments of Australia
and Uruguay.

Australia Uruguay Consolidated
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
$ $ $ $ $ $

Geographical Segments
Revenue

Other revenues from customers 348,758 487,026 - 2,023 348,758 489,049
Total segment revenue 348,758 487,026 - 2,023 483758 489,049
Assets

Segment assets 1,778,937 4,558,808 14,282,590 11,503,746 16,061,527 16,062,554

Major Customers - - - - -
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NOTE 20: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND P OLICIES

The Company'’s principal financial instruments comsgicash and short-term deposits.

The main purpose of these financial instrument®iginance the Company’s operations. The Compaaxy
various other financial assets and liabilities sastirade receivables and trade payables, whish diiectly from
its operations. It is, and has been throughouttitee year under review, the Company’s policyt tha trading
in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Company'’s finanaistruments are cash flow interest rate risk amuaite price
risk. Other minor risks are either summarised Wwebo disclosed at Note 6 in the case of credit askd Note 11
in the case of capital risk management. The Boari@ws and agrees policies for managing eachesithisks.

Cash Flow Interest Rate Risk

The Company’s exposure to the risks of changesairket interest rates relates primarily to the Comyfsashort-

term deposits with a floating interest rate. Thisancial assets with variable rates expose theamy to cash
flow interest rate risk. All other financial assetnd liabilities in the form of receivables angataes are non-
interest bearing. The Company does not engagryirhadging or derivative transactions to manager@st rate
risk.

The following tables set out the carrying amountniturity of the Company’s exposure to interest rigk and
the effective weighted average interest rate fohedass of these financial instruments.

The Company has not entered into any hedging desvio cover interest rate risk. In regard tanterest rate
risk, the Company does not have a formal policglate to mitigate such risks.

Consolidated

Non Interest Weighted Fixed Total
Bearing Average Effective Interest Rate $
$ Interest Rate % $
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Financial Assets
- Cash and cash equivalents 542,203 345,811 4.20 5.52 250,000 3,200,00 792,203 3,545,811

- Trade and other receivables 884,024 1,301,322 - - 884,024 1,301,322
Total Financial Assets 1,426,227 1,633,1 250,000 3,200,000 1,676,227 4,847,133
Financial Liabilities
- Trade and other payables 749,968 827,644 - - - - 49968 827,644
Total Financial Liabilities 749,968 827,644 - - 749,968 827,644
Net Financial

Assets/(Liabilities) 676,259 8480 250,000 3,200,000 928, 4,019,489
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NOTE 20: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND P OLICIES (Cont.)

Interest Rate Sensitivity

At 30 June 2013, if interest rates had changedd®y during the entire year with all other variabthe$d constant,
profit for the year and equity would have been 80,%wer/higher, mainly as a result of lower/higlmerest
income from cash and cash equivalents.

A sensitivity of 10% has been selected as thioisiclered reasonable given the current level di bbbrt term
and long term Australian dollar interest rates10% increase sensitivity would move short termriggerates at
30 June 2013 from around 4.20% to 4.62% (10% dseeréa78%) representing a 55 basis points shift.

Based on the sensitivity analysis, only interegenele from variable rate deposits and cash balareeisnpacted
resulting in a decrease or increase in overallnmeo

Liquidity Risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintainingfisient cash reserves and marketable securities a
through the continuous monitoring of budgeted arida cash flows.

Consolidated

2013 2012
$ $
Contracted maturities of payable at 30 June
Payable
- less than 6 months 749,968 827,644

Commodity Price Risk

The Company is not exposed to commodity price dskthe operations of the Company are not yet at the
production stage.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Company is exposed to foreign exchange ratngrifrom various currency exposures, primarilyhwit
respect to the US dollar and PESO.

Foreign exchange risk arises from future cemuml transactions and recognised assets lefulities

denominated in a currency that is not the Compafuwyistional currency. The risk is measured usinusiiity
analysis.
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NOTE 20: FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND P OLICIES (Cont.)

Foreign Currency Risk Sensitivity Analysis

At 30 June, the effect on profit and equity as sulteof changes in the value of the Australian Bwotio the
foreign currencies, with all other variables renragnconstant is as follows:

2013 2012
Change in equity with a +/- Change in equity with a +/-
10% in exchange rates 10% in exchange rates
$ $
Total Assets 2,140,318 615,877
Total Liabilities 2,110,76! 671,86(

Reconciliation of Net Financial Assets to Net Asset

Consolidated

2013 2012
$ $

Net financial assets 926,259 4,019,489
Property, plant and equipment 74,380 97,527
Mineral exploration and evaluation

expenditure 14,190,261 11,113,800
Other financial assets 120,659 4,094
Net assets 15,311,559 15,234,910

Net Fair Values

For other assets and liabilities the net fair vayproximates their carrying value except for dwecgelated
receivables which are not interest bearing. The j@2om has no financial assets or liabilities tha eradily
traded on organised markets at reporting date aschb financial assets where the carrying amourdesls net
fair values at reporting date.

The aggregate net fair values and carrying amaeinfigsancial assets and financial liabilities atisctbsed in the
statement of financial position and in the noteth&financial statements.

NOTE 21: EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO REPORTING PERIOD

Subsequent to the end of the financial year, tmepemy received a winding up notice in the orde$%8,000. The
directors intend to repay this amount and do ntitipate that this will impact the company anddpgerations going

forward.
Other than noted above, there has not arisen imtbesal between the end of the financial year tireddate of this

report any item, transaction or event of a mateatad unusual nature likely, in the opinion of theectors of the
Company, to affect significantly the operationstié Company, the results of those operations orstage of
affairs of the Company, in future financial years.

-59-



AND ITS CONTROLLED ENTITIE

NOTE 22: SHARE BASED PAYMENTS

Issue of shares
No shares were issued to directors and other kexagament personnel as part of compensation durengdar ended.

Options
No options were issued to directors and other kapiagement personnel as part of compensation dthéngear ended
June 30, 2013.

Performance rights
No performance rights were issued to directors @hdr key management personnel as part of compenshtring the
year ended 30 June 2013.

The number of performance rights over ordinary efiggranted to and vested by directors and othemiayagement
personnel as a part of compensation during yeaeceddne 30, 2013 are set out below:

Number of Fair value Value of
rights per right at rights Date
Name granted Date granted Expiry date grant date exercised exercised
L Dean 500,00  31/05/2012  31/05/201E 0.05 24,400 07/11/2012
R Adams 3,000,00C 31/05/2012  31/05/201E 0.05 146,400 07/11/2012
J Palermo 3,000,00C 31/05/2012  31/05/201F 0.05 146,400 07/11/2012
S Hall 500,00  31/05/2012  31/05/201F 0.05 24,400 07/11/2012
D Bruno 500,00  31/05/2012  31/05/201Et 0.05 24,400 07/11/2012

7,500,00(

The rights vested following completion of the peadibility study on the Isla Cristalina Joint Veetproject in
Uruguay from Orosur Mining Inc.

The value of performance rights over ordinary sigranted, exercised lapsed for directors and aiyemanagement
personnel as part of compensation during the yededJune 30, 2013 are set below:

Value of
options
Number of Fair value lapsed
rights Date perrightat during the
Name granted granted Expiry date  grant date year Date lapsed
L Dean (resigned 17/12/12) 400,00C 30/11/2011 08/12/20140.10 41,600 21/02/2013
S Hall (resigned 7/12/12) 400,000 30/11/2011 08/12/20140.10 41,600 21/02/2013

800,00(

The above rights lapsed on resignation of directors
NOTE 23: COMPANY DETAILS

Gladiator Resources Limited is a company limitedshgres that is incorporated and domiciled in Aalistr Its
registered office and principal place of businedsdated at Suite 4, Level 9, 341 George Streein&y, NSW.
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NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

NOTE 24: PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES

(&) Financial Position

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other receivables

Total Current Assets
Non Current Assets

Plant and equipment
Other financial assets

Mineral exploration and evaluation expenditure

Total Non Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables

Total Current Liabilities

Non Current Liabilities
Other financial liabilities

Total Non Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Net Assets

Equity

Issued capital

Reserves

Accumulated losses

Total Equity

(b) Financial Performance

Loss for the year

Other Comprehensive income

Total Comprehensive Loss

2013 2012
$ $
651,866 3,309,306

39,428 531,865
691,294 3,841,171
- 4,972

13,919,669 11,781,390
971,543 820,565

14,891,212 12,606,927

15,582,506 16,448,098
329,644 571,659
329,644 571,659

32,966 32,966
32,966 32,966
362,610 604,625
15,219,896 15,843,473
18,005,194 18,007,112
2,081,611 2,698,731
(5,766,909)  (4,862,370)
15,219,896 15,843,473
2013 2012
$ $
(904,539)  (523,108)
(904,539)  (523,108)
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NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2012

NOTE 24: PARENT ENTITY DISCLOSURES (Cont.)

(c) Guarantees
Gladiator Resources Limited has not entered inyogaarantees in relation to the debts of its suddas.

(d) Other Commitments and Contingencies
Gladiator Resources Limited has no commitmentsctpuiae property, plant and equipment and has ndargent

liabilities.
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DIRECTORS’ DECLARATION

In the opinion of the directors:

a) The financial statements, notes and additiomatlasures included in the directors’ report deatgd as
audited, are in accordance with the Corporatioris?2Q01, including:

i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidatentity’s financial position as at 30 June 2013 afdts
performance for the year ended on that date; and

i) complying with Australian Accounting Standaraisd the Corporations Regulations 2001;

b) the financial statements and notes theretoraaedordance with International Financial Repor@tgndards
issued by the International Accounting Standardar@ocas disclosed in Note 1(a); and

c) there are reasonable grounds to believe thaCtimapany will be able to pay its debts as and wihey
become due and payable.

This declaration has been made after receivingléndarations required to be made to the directoeccordance
with Section 295A of the Corporations Act 2001 tlee financial year ended 30 June 2013.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Doecmade pursuant to section 295(5) of the Cotjpors Act
2001

Dated this 3t day of September, 2013

OSCAR LEON
Director
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RSM Bird Cameron Partners

8 St George’s Terrace Perth WA 6000
GPO Box R1253 Perth WA 6844

T +618 92619100 F +61 8 9261 9101
www.rsmi.com.au

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF
GLADIATOR RESOURCES LIMITED

Report on the Financial Report

We have audited the accompanying financial report of Gladiator Resources Limited, which comprises the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and the
directors' declaration of the consolidated entity comprising the company and the entities it controlled at the year’s
end or from time to time during the financial year.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Financial Report

The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true and fair
view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In Note 1(a), the directors also state, in accordance with
Accounting Standard AASB 101 Presentation of Financial Statements, that the financial statements comply with
International Financial Reporting Standards.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial report based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. These Auditing Standards require that we comply with relevant
ethical requirements relating to audit engagements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial report is free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial report. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the
financial report in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Liability limited by a Major Offices in: RSM Bird Cameron Partners is a member of the RSM network. Each member §
scheme approved Perth, Sydney, Melbourne,  of the RSM network is an independent accounting and advisory firm which Y,
under Professional Adelaide and Canberra practises in its own right. The RSM network is not itself a separate legal entity Qualty

Standards Legislation ~ ABN 36 965 185 036 in any jurisdiction. 150 9001



g RSM Bird Cameron Partners

Independence

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001. We
confirm that the independence declaration required by the Corporations Act 2001, which has been given to the
directors of Gladiator Resources Limited, would be in the same terms if given to the directors as at the time of this
auditor's report.

Opinion
In our opinion:
(a) the financial report of Gladiator Resources Limited is in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

(i) giving a true and fair view of the consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2013 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date; and

(i) complying with Australian Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001; and
(b) the financial report also complies with International Financial Reporting Standards as disclosed in Note 1(a).
Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the financial report, which indicates that the
company and consolidated entity incurred losses of $904,539 and $141,786 respectively for the year ended 30
June 2013. The consolidated entity also had net cash outflows from operating activities of $628,054 and from
investing activities of $3,071,694 for the year ended 30 June 2013. These conditions, along with other matters as
set forth in Note 1, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the
company’s and consolidated entity’s ability to continue as going concerns and therefore, the company and
consolidated entity may be unable to realise their assets and discharge their liabilities in the normal course of
business.

Report on the Remuneration Report

We have audited the Remuneration Report contained within the directors’ report for the year ended 30 June 2013.
The directors of the company are responsible for the preparation and presentation of the Remuneration Report in
accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Remuneration Report, based on our audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards.

Opinion

In our opinion the Remuneration Report of Gladiator Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June 2013
complies with section 300A of the Corporations Act 2001.

R<m Bird (’amum PA("’(\UI
RSM BIRD CAMERON PARTNERS

=&

Perth, WA TUTU PHONG
Dated: 30 September 2013 Partner
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RSM Bird Cameron Partners

8 St George’s Terrace Perth WA 6000
GPO Box R1253 Perth WA 6844

T +618 9261 9100 F +61 8 9261 9101
www.rsmi.com.au

AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION

As lead auditor for the audit of the financial report of Gladiator Resources Limited for the year ended 30 June
2013, | declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there have been no contraventions of:

(i) the auditor independence requirements of the Corporations Act 2001 in relation to the audit; and

(i)  any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

Rsm Bird Oamum PAI"‘(\('I
RSM BIRD CAMERON PARTNERS

——_i:——u}

Perth, WA TUTU PHONG
Dated: 30 September 2013 Partner
—
Liability limited by a Major Offices in: RSM Bird Cameron Partners is a member of the RSM network. Each member B
scheme approved Perth, Sydney, Melbourne,  of the RSM network is an independent accounting and advisory firm which £ /
under Professional Adelaide and Canberra practises in its own right. The RSM network is not itself a separate legal entity Qualty
1S0 9001

Standards Legislation ~ ABN 36 965 185 036 in any jurisdiction.



1. QUOTED SECURITIES
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ASX ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

(a) ORDINARY FULL PAID SHARES

() DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS AS AT 13 SEPTEMBER 2013:

SPREAD OF HOLDINGS NO. OF SHARES NO. OF SECURITIES PERCENTAGE
HOLDERS OF ISSUED
CAPITAL
%
NIL holding
1- 25 1,561 0.00
1,001 — 40 132,962 0.06
5,001 - 10,000 107 985,252 0.42
10,001 — 100,000 212 9,076,763 3.90
100,001 — 139 222,788,684 95.62
Total on register 523 232,985,222 100.00

The number of shareholdings held in less than nbake parcels is 324.

CoNoOhrwNE
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(i) TOP 20 HOLDERS OF ORDINARY FULLY PAID SHARES

The names of twenty largest shareholders of ordifudlly paid shares are listed as below:

NAME

BNP Paribas Noms PL
Wealthystar Grp Ltd

Nefco Nom PL

ABN Amro Clearing Sydney
JP Morgan Nom Aust Ltd
Finebase HIldgs PL

Biyani Kaushik
Avotins Julie
Jomima PL
Citicorp Nom PL

Adams Robert Timothy

Global Pearl Ltd
Red Oaks PL
Dirki PL

M & M Fam PL
Emmett Cap PL

Leuzzi Joe + Sally

Cassim Salim

DESIGNATION

Drp

Cust A/C
Cash Income A/C

Emmet Fam A/C

NO. OF
ORDINARY
SHARES HELD

55,123,951

18,144,065
12,426,548

10,415,726
8,078,034

7,827,273
5,736,967
4,756,216
4,645,000
4,525,879

3,650,000
3,400,000

3,000,000

2,900,000
2,750,000
2,598,125
2,500,000
2,436,883

PERCENTAGE OF
ISSUED SHARES
%

23.66
7.79
5.33
4.4

3.47

3.36
2.46
2.04
1.99
1.94

1.57

1.46

1.29

1.24
1.18
112
1.07
1.05
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Casa Dolce PL Todd Rapley Fam 2,000,000 0.86
AlC
Fend Li 2,000,000 0.86
Top 20 Total 158,914,667 68.21

ASX ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  (continued)
1. QUOTED SECURITIES (continued)

(i)  VOTING RIGHTS

Articles 15 on the Constitution specify that orhaw of hands every member present in

person, by attorney or by proxy shall have:

(a) For every fully paid share held by him one votej an

(b) For every share which is not fully paid a fractafrthe vote equal to the amount paid up

on the share over the nominal value of the shares

(iv) SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Substantial Shareholder as recorded in the Registdembers as at 13 September 2013.

Name Ordinary Shares
No. %
Union Group International Holdings Ltd 43,607,675 8.7
(b) OPTIONS

As at 13 September 2013, tkezxisted the following quoted options:

137,996,940 OPTIONS EXERCISEABLE AT$0.10 EACH ON ORBEFORE 30 JUNE

2015
0] DISTRIBUTION OF OPTIONHOLDERS:
SPREAD OF HOLDINGS NO. OF SHARES NO. OF SECURITIES PERCENTAGE
HOLDERS OF ISSUED
CAPITAL
%
NIL holding
1- 1,000 2 806 0.00
1,001 - 5,000 11 33,316 0.02
5,001 — 10,000 5 39,547 0.03
10,001 - 100,000 95 4,693,861 3.40
100,001 — 128 133,229,410 96.55
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Total on register 241 137,996,940 100.00
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ASX ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  (continued)

(b) OPTIONYcontinued)

(i) TOP HOLDER OF QUOTED OPTIONS:

NAME DESIGNATION

Nefco Nom PL

Wealthystar Grp Ltd

ABN Amro Clearing Sydney Cust A/C

Brycki Mark W + N J Brycki Pension Fund

BNP Paribas Noms PL Drp
Finebase HIldgs PL Finebase A/C
Avotins Julie

Spagnolo Giovanni Marcus Deluca A/C
Global Pearl Ltd
Finebase Hldgs PL

JP Morgan Nom Aust Ltd
Leuzzi Joe + Sally

Celtic Cap Pte Ltd

Wise Daniel Paul

Flue Hidgs PL

Boland Kieran James A
Morgan Dennis C + G M
Goffacan PL

Brycki Christopher

Fend Li

Cash Income A/C
Trading A/C 1
Ark Inv A/C

Graden S/F A/IC

Top 20 Total

(i)  VOTING RIGHTS

Holders of options are not entitled to a vote &emeral meeting of Members in person, by

NO. OF

ORDINARY

SHARES
HELD

12,578,725
9,444,065
8,526,343
8,00@M00
4,715,379
4,000,685
3,692,597
3,495,889
3,400,000
3,247,273
3,078,09
3,000,000
3,000,000
2,547,944
2,397,944
2,393,637
2,221,819
2,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

85,740,395

proxy or upon a poll, in respect of their optioms#holding.

PERCENTAGE OF
ISSUED SHARES

%

9.12
6.84
6.18
5.80
3.42
2.90
2.68
532.
2.46
2.35
2.23
2.17
2.17
1.85
1.74
1.73
1.61
1.45
1.45
1.45

62.13
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ASX ADDITIONAL INFORMATION  (continued)

2. UNQUOTED SECURITIES

(a) OPTIONS

As at 13 September 2013 there existed the followimguoted options:

(i)

(ii)

(i)

1,000,000 OPTIONS EXERCISEABLE AT $0.30 EACH ON ORBEFORE 31 DECEMBER 2013

Name Options %
Azure Capital Investments Pty Ltd 1,000,000 1@.0
1,000,000 OPTIONS EXERCISEABLE AT $0.40 EACH ON ORBEFORE 31 DECEMBER 2013

Name Options %

Azure Capital Investments Pty Ltd 1,000,000 1@.0

VOTING RIGHTS
Holders of options are not entitled to vote a Gahkteeting of Members in person, by proxy of upon a
poll, in respect of their option holding.

3. DIRECTORS INTERESTS

Interests of each director in the share capit#hefCompany at 30 June 2013 are detailed in thecioirs Report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

Gladiator Resources Limited (“the Company”) is coited to implementing and maintaining the highest
standards of corporate governance. The primaporesbility of the Board of the Company (“the Bogri$ to
represent and advance the Company’s sharehold#re’ $hareholders”) interests and to protect therasts of
all stakeholders. To fulfill this role, the Boasdresponsible for the overall corporate governaridhe Company
including its strategic direction, establishing Igdar its employees and monitoring achievemerihe§e goals.

Subject to the exceptions outlined below, the Campaill adopt the ASX Corporate Governance Couscil’
Corporate Governance Principles and Recommeémastreleased in 2007 (“the Recommendations”) to
determine an appropriate system of controtl atcountability to best fit its businessd anperations
commensurate with these guidelines.

The Company's compliance with the Revised Corpor@t/ernance Principles and Recommendations is
summarised in the table below:

ASX P & R' | If not, why nof ASX P & R' | If not, why not

Recommendation 1.1 4 Recommendation 4.8 v
Recommendation 1.2 v Recommendation 4.4 v
Recommendation 1.8 v Recommendation 5.1 v
Recommendation 2.1 4 Recommendation 5.2 v
Recommendation 2.2 4 Recommendation 6.1 v
Recommendation 2.3 4 Recommendation 6.2 v
Recommendation 2.4 4 Recommendation 7.1 v
Recommendation 2.5 4 Recommendation 7.2 v
Recommendation 2.6 v Recommendation 7.3 v
Recommendation 3.1 v Recommendation 7.4 v
Recommendation 3.2 v Recommendation 8.1 v
Recommendation 3.3 4 Recommendation 8.2 v
Recommendation 4.1 4 Recommendation 8.3 v
Recommendation 4.2 v

1 Indicates where the Company has followed theciries & Recommendations and summarised thoseigeadielow.
2 Indicates where the Company has provided arotifwhy not” disclosure below.

In acknowledging the Key Messages of the firsteevdf the corporate governance reporting undeRibésed
Corporate Governance Principles and Recommiemdatby ASX Markets Supervision (“ASXMY the
Company has provided additional disclosure for eakclthe 27 recommendations. Where the Company has
departed from a recommendation, the Compaay provided substantive reasons and refersndterial
containing additional disclosure, as relevant.

The “if not, why not” disclosure of the Companysismmarised in the table below:
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

—

=

Recommendation | Explanation of Departure from Recommendation

1.1,1.2 The Company has not appointed anyioseexecutives (excluding th
Company Secretary). Therefore, full disclosurahef functions delegated
senior executives, and the evaluation of executiygsformance nder|
Recommendation 1.1 and 1.2 is not appropriate.

2.3 The Company has not appointed a CEO. eftwar, disclosure unde
Recommendation 2.3 is not appropriate.

2.4 Owing to the size and composition of the Boards not appropriate tg

establish an independent nomination committeeto establish a formg
nomination policy.

A

41,4.2,43,4.4

Owing to the size and compasitid the Board, it is not appropriate
establish an independent audit committee, or fbéish a formal audit policy

to

51,52

Owing to the size and composition of thead, it is not appropriate t
establish formal policies for the oversight and npotion of tinely and
balanced disclosure in accordance with the CorjporsitAct and ASXListing
Rules.

@]

6.1,6.2

Owing to the size and composition of thead, it is not appropriate t
establish a formal policy to promotefeefive communication with
Shareholders and encourage their participatioreatings.

@]

1l

7.1,72,73,74

Owing to the size and compasitd the Board, it is not appropriate
establish formal risk management policies,tlds function is effectively
discharged by the full Board.

to

8.1,8.2,8.3

Owing to the size and compositionthef Board, it is not appropriate
establish an independent remuneration committeetail® of the Compary
remuneration policy are set out in the Remunerafeport in the Directr’s
Report.

(6]

It is noted that as the Company’s activitiksvelop in size, nature and scope, the gamyis corporate
governance policies and processes will continumetoeviewed and improved as resources permit.

1. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

1.1. Role of Board

The Board is responsible for setting the strategiection and establishing and overseeing the jgsliand
financial position of the Company, and monitorihg business and affairs on behalf of its Shareha|dby
whom the directors of the Company (“the Directo® elected and to whom they are accountable.

Further, the Board takes specific responsibility fo

« Protecting and enhancing Shareholder value;
* Formulating, reviewing and approving the objediaad strategic direction of the Company;
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Role of Board(continued)
« Approving all significant business transactionsluding acquisitions, divestments and capital
expenditure;

¢ Monitoring the financial performance of the Compdry reviewing and approving budgets and
monitoring results;

« Ensuring that adequate internal control systents @ocedures exist and that compliance with
these systems and procedures is maintained;

« Identifying significant business risks and ensgitimat such risks are adequately managed;
¢ Reviewing the performance and remuneration ofdbams;
« Establishing and maintaining appropriate ethitahdards; and

« Evaluating and, where appropriate, adopting withmihout modification, the ASX Corporate
Governance Council’€orporate Governance Principles and Recommendations

The Board is responsible for establishing a cultame framework that supports corporate governance,
including creating the strategic direction for thempany and establishing goals for employees.

The Company has a formal Board Charter, which @lavle from the Company on request. In broad
terms, the Board is accountable to the Shareholdetsnust ensure that the Company is properly nethag
to protect and enhance Shareholders’ wealth aner atkerests. The Board Charter sets out the ante
responsibilities of the Board within the gmemnce structure of the Company and itstedlebodies
corporate (as defined in ti@orporations Agt

The Company has not employed any senior executifiesefore, disclosure under Recommendations 1.2
and 1.3 are not required.

Terms of Office of Directors

The constitution of Gladiator Resources Limited @tfStitution”) specifies that one third of the Dirers
shall rotate on an annual basis.

Composition of the Board and Independence

The Directors in office at the date of this statetraee:

Name Position Independent Expertise

Oscar Leon Director Yes Refer to Director’'s Repor
Juan Martin Jorge Director Yes Refer to Directétegport
Andrew Draffin Director Yes Refer to Director's Rap
Malcolm Draffin Director Yes Refer to Director’s part
Daniel Bruno Director Yes Refer to Director’s Refpor

The Board considers the majority of Directors toifigependent, commensurate with Recommendation
2.1. John Palermo is not considered to be indegrgndwing to his position as Company Secretarhef
Company.

The Board considers the Chair to be independeisi;énrdance with Recommendation 2.2.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS (continued)
Composition of the Board and Independendgontinued)

The Company has not appointed a Chief Executivee@ff However, in the spirit of Recommendation, 2.3
the roles of Chair and Company Secretary are maiged by the same person.

The composition of the Board is determined usirgfthlowing principles:

* The Board comprises five Directors; however, thisnber may be increased where it is felt that
additional expertise is required in specific areaswhen an outstanding candidate is identified:;
and

e The Board should comprise Directors with a braatde of expertise.

The Board reviews its composition on an annualsbsiensure that the Board has the appropriateofmix
expertise and experience. When a vacancy exatsytiatever reason, or where it is considered ttheat
Board would benefit from the services of a new Etioe with particular skills, the Board selects agleof
candidates with the appropriate expertise and eqa. Potential candidates are identified byBbard
with advice from an external consultant, if necegsa’he Board then appoints the most suitable ickabel
who must stand for election at a General Meetin§hareholders.

Monitoring of Board Performance

In accordance with Recommendation 2.5, the Dirstiperformance is reviewed by the Chairman on an
ongoing basis. In the event that any Directorssfgrmance is considered to be unsatisfactory, that
Director will be asked to retire from the BoardhelChairman’s performance is reviewed by the reimmgin
three Board members on an ongoing basis and aogbydi was not considered necessary for a formal
review to take place during the period.

The Company has established firm guidelines totifjethe measurable and qualitative indicators o t
Directors’ performance during the course of thery@the Guidelines”). Those Guidelines include
minimum requirements for attendance at all Board &hareholder meetings, whereby the non-attendance
of a Director at more than three consecutiveetings without reasonable excuse will lteBu that
Director’s position being reviewed.

Independent Professional Advice

Each Director has the right, in connection with/teés duties and responsibilities as a Directorseek
independent professional advice at the Company®mrse. However, prior approval of the Chairman is
required, which will not be unreasonably withheld.

BOARD COMMITTEES
Nomination Committee

Owing to its size and composition, the Company matsestablished a separate nomination committee in
accordance with Recommendation 2.4.

The Board considers that the selection and appemitiof Directors should be the responsibility o thll
Board and that no benefits or efficiencies are ¢odained by delegating this function to a separate
committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Nomination Committee(continued)

In any event, the Board consists of five membersThe minimum composition recommended for a
nomination committee pursuant to RecommendatiornsZiaree.

The Board does not have a separate charter fapitsnation and succession planning functions; henev
the responsibilities of the Board ordinarily inckudunctions described in section 1.3 of this Coaper
Governance Statement.

Audit Committee

Owing to its size and composition, the Company has established a separate audit committee in
accordance with Recommendation 4.1.

The Board considers that the selection and appeintwf Directors should be the responsibility of fhll
Board and that no benefits or efficiencies are ¢odained by delegating this function to a separate
committee. In any event, the Board consists @ frembers. The minimum number recommended for an
audit committee pursuant to Recommendation 4 2réset

The majority of the Board is independent, all Dioes are financially literate and the qualificaoof Mr
Leon, Mr Jorge, Mr A.Draffin, Mr M.Draffin and Mr Bino provides sufficient technical expertise to
provide valuable insight to allow the Board to f)ieand safeguard the integrity of the Company’'sificial
statements.

Preserving the spirit of Principle 4, the exteradlitor has full access to the Board throughouyéze.

The Board does not have a separate charter faudg functions; however, the responsibilities loé t
Board ordinarily include:

* Reviewing internal controls and recommending enbarents;

« Monitoring compliance with Corporations Act 20(®8ecurities Exchange Listing Rules, matters
outstanding with auditors, Australian Taxation ©dfi Australian Securities and Investment
Commission and financial institutions;

« Improving the quality of the accounting function;

* Reviewing external audit reports to ensumat,t where major deficiencies or breakdowns i
controls or procedures have been identified, ap@tgand prompt remedial action is taken by the
Company; and

< Liaising with the external auditors and ensurihgttthe annual audit and half-year review are
conducted in an effective manner.

The Board reviews the performance of the externditars on an annual basis and nomination of arglito
is as the discretion of the Board.

Remuneration Committee

Owing to its size and composition, the Company ri@sestablished a separate remuneration commiitee i
accordance with Recommendation 8.1.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES (continued)
Remuneration Committegcontinued)

The Board considers that the responsibilily the selection and appointment of Directoen be
adequately discharged by the Board and that nofiteoe efficiencies are to be gained by delegatimg
function to a separate committee. In any everd, Board consists of five members. The minimum
composition recommended for an audit committeeyamsto Recommendation 8.1 is three.

The Board does not have a separate charter foentsineration functions; however, the Board is wkste
with the responsibility to review remuneration pag&s and policies (including remuneration, incasjv
termination policies and superannuation arrangesheaypplicable to the each of the Directors and the
Company Secretary. Remuneration levels are petitively set to attract the most qualifiethd
experienced Directors for the benefit of the Compand Shareholders. The Board obtains independent
advice on the appropriateness of remuneration gaska

A full disclosure of the Company’s remunerationlpsophy and framework and the remuneration received
by Directors in the current period are set outhe Remuneration Report, which is contained withia t
Directors’ Report.

An approved Employee Share Option Plan is in ptacenable the Board to grant share options as an
incentive for superior performance to eligible eoygles. Directors are currently not eligible totiograte
in the Employee Share Option Plan. Any changesisgpolicy would require Shareholder approval.

Shareholder approval is also required to rdeite the maximum aggregate remuneration Naon-
Executive Directors. The maximum aggregate renatioer approved for Non-Executive Directors is
currently set at $250,000 per annum.

ETHICAL STANDARDS

The Company has established a formal Code of Car{tihe Code”) as per Recommendation 3.1, which
is available from the Company on request.

The Code outlines the Company’s expectations aéddirs and employees and its related bodies cdgpora
in relation to their behaviour and the way businsssonducted in the workplace on a range of issues
Directors and employees are committed to actindp Wit utmost integrity and objectivity, striving ait
times to enhance the reputation and performandeeo€Company. Directors and employees must conduct
themselves in a manner consistent with the expentadf its stakeholders, commensurate with prengil
community and corporate standards, and must taggonsibility for upholding the Company’s legal
obligations. In addition, the Board subscribeghie Statement of Ethical Standards as publishethéy
Australian Institute of Company Directors.

DIRECTORS’ DEALINGS IN COMPANY SHARES

The Company has implemented a formal trading po#isyrequired by Recommendation 3.2 entitled
Guidelines for Dealing in SecuritiesThis policy applies to Directors, employees a&odtractors of the
Company, and is available from the Company on retque
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

DIRECTORS’ DEALINGS IN COMPANY SHARES (continued)

In addition, Directors must notify the Australiaecsrities Exchange of any acquisition or dispodal o
shares by lodgement of a Notice of Directointerests. Board policy is to prohibiirdators and
employees from dealing in shares of the Companistvini possession of price sensitive information.

CONTINUOUS DISCLOSURE AND SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICAT ION

The Company has implemented a formal Continuousl@dsre and Information Policy as required by
Recommendation 5.1, which is available on requégiis policy was introduced to ensure the Company
achieves compliance with its continuous disclosobtigations under the Corporations Act and ASX
Listing Rules.

The Board aims to ensure that the Sharelgmlden behalf of whom they act, are infodmef all
information necessary to assess the performanctheofDirectors.  Information is communicated to
Shareholders through:

* The Annual Report which is distributed to all Sitaslders;

» Half-yearly reports, quarterly reports and ASX announcements which are posted on the
Company’s website;

* The Annual General Meeting and other meetingsafleccto obtain Shareholder approval for Board
action as appropriate;

» Compliance with the continuous disclosure requaets of the ASX Listing Rules; and

* The Company’s auditor is required to be presem, lze available to Shareholders, at the Annual
General Meeting.

RESPECT THE RIGHTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has a formal privacy policy (“the Peivdolicy”), which is available from the Company on
request. The Company is committed to respectiagotivacy of Shareholders’ personal informatiorhisT
Privacy Policy sets out the Company's personal rimédion management practices and covers the
application of privacy laws, personal informatiasllection, the use and disclosure of personal médion,
accessing and updating Shareholders’ informatiahtla@ security of that information.

The Board has not adopted any additional formaksodf conduct to guide compliance with legal and
other obligations to Shareholders, in accordandé Wiecommendation 6. This is because the Board
considers, in the context of the size and naturthefCompany, that it would not improve the effeeti
exercise of the Shareholders’ rights.

Nevertheless, the Company informally adopts sewaréihe suggestions in Recommendation 6, including
communicating to Shareholders electronicallpd auploading its formal codes and policies the
Company’s website.

RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISK

The Board has no formal policy in place to recognisnd manage risk, as recommended by
Recommendation 7.1. This is because the Boardidmns, in the context of the size and nature ef th
Company, that it would not improve the Company’stegn of risk oversight and management and internal
control.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT (continued)

RECOGNISE AND MANAGE RISK (continued)

Notwithstanding the absence of a formal policyk nisanagement is a priority for the Board who remain
vigilant in creating a culture, processes and &ires directed to optimising the Company’s oppaties
whilst minimising and managing potential materiasimess risks.

Risk oversight, management and internal controldaat with on a continuous basis by management and
the Board, with differing degrees of involvemertrfr various Directors and management, depending upon
the nature and materiality of the matter. The Haamtinuously reviews material business risklemtify
whether the system for identifying and reportirgksiis being managed effectively.

As the Company has not appointed a Chief Exec@iffieer (or equivalent) or Chief Financial Officéor
equivalent), an assurance under s295A of the Catipos Act has been made by Mr John Palermo.

The Annual Report sets out the major categorigsshfapplicable to the Company, which is set ouhim
Annual Report.
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